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1 General information 

1.1 Introduction 
River improvement trusts (trusts) are statutory bodies constituted under the River Improvement Trust 
Act 1940 (the RIT Act) to protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent 
or mitigate flooding of land by riverine floods. 

Trusts are statutory bodies under the Financial Accountability Act 2009 (FA Act) and the Statutory 
Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982 (SBFA Act). 

In each financial year, trusts are obliged to provide annual reports and audited financial statements to 
the Minister for Natural Resources, Mines and Energy (the Minister). The Minister is required to table 
either a copy of each trust’s annual report or a summary of the trusts’ annual reports in the 
Queensland Parliament. This report is a summarised compilation of the individual annual reports 
produced by trusts for the financial year ending 30 June 2018. 

The report includes both general and specific information about all of the trusts including their 
function, constitution date, contact details, membership, staff, current and proposed operations and 
financial information.  

Copies of an individual trust’s annual report, including audited financial statements, are available from 
either the trust or the Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy (the department). 

1.2 Location of trust areas 

There are 11 trusts operating in Queensland—three in the Darling Downs region, two in the south-

east Queensland, and six on the tropical north coast between Whitsunday and Mossman. The river 

improvement areas of six of these trusts cover part of their constituent local government’s area, while 

the remaining five cover the whole of their constituent local government’s area (see Table 1). 

Figure 1 shows the location of the river improvement area of each of the 11 trusts operating within the 

financial year 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018. 

Table 1 lists the trusts in alphabetical order and shows trust areas in relation to local government 

areas. 

Generally, the place of business of a trust is the relevant local government office. Contact and other 

details for all trusts appear under trust membership and contact details (see section 10). 
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Figure 1 – River improvement trust areas 
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Table 1 – River improvement trusts in relation to local government areas. 

Trust Trust area 
Local government area or part 

thereof comprising trust area 

Burdekin Shire Rivers 
Improvement Trust 

Burdekin Shire Rivers 
Improvement Area 

The local government area of the 
Burdekin Shire Council 

Cairns River Improvement 
Trust 

Cairns River Improvement Area 
The local government area of the 
Cairns Regional Council  

Cassowary Coast River 
Improvement Trust 

Cassowary Coast River 
Improvement Area 

Part of the local government area of 
the Cassowary Coast Regional Council 
as described on plan AP19396  

Don River Improvement 
Trust 

Don River Improvement Area 
Part of the local government area of 
the Whitsunday Regional Council as 
described on plan AP19394 

Herbert River Improvement 
Trust 

Herbert River Improvement Area 
The local government area of the 
Hinchinbrook Shire Council 

Ipswich Rivers Improvement 
Trust 

Ipswich Rivers Improvement 
Area 

The local government area of the 
Ipswich City Council 

Scenic Rim Rivers 
Improvement Trust 

Scenic Rim Rivers Improvement 
Area 

The local government area of the 
Scenic Rim Regional Council 

Stanthorpe Shire River 
Improvement Trust 

Stanthorpe Shire River 
Improvement Area 

Part of the local government area of 
the Southern Downs Regional Council 
as described on plan AP19399  

Wambo Shire River 
Improvement Trust 

Wambo Shire River 
Improvement Area  

Part of the local government area of 
the Western Downs Regional Council 
as described on plan AP19400  

Warwick Shire River 
Improvement Trust 

Warwick Shire River 
Improvement Area 

Part of the local government area of 
the Southern Downs Regional Council 
as described on plan AP19401  

Whitsunday Rivers 
Improvement Trust 

Whitsunday Rivers Improvement 
Area 

Part of the local government area of 
the Whitsunday Regional Council as 
described on plan AP19402 

 

1.3 Constitution and function 

The role of trusts is to protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers, and prevent or 

mitigate inundation of land by riverine floods. The primary role of a trust is to plan, design, finance, 

undertake and maintain stream improvement works for the benefit of the community within its river 

improvement area. The RIT Act provides a trust with the powers to undertake these functions, 

including the ability to raise funds, enter land, occupy land, enter into contracts and carry out works. 

A local government, or multiple local governments, may apply to the Minister to have constituted, by 

regulation, a trust and a river improvement area over which it has jurisdiction. A river improvement 

area may comprise all or part of one or more local government areas, and may be amended by 

regulation under the RIT Act. A local government may also apply to the Minister to dissolve a trust 

and its river improvement area. 
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2 Non-financial performance—general 

2.1 Government’s objectives for the community 

Trusts provide services aligned to the government’s objective of ensuring sustainable management of 

natural resources—and other whole-of-government strategies. 

2.2 Other whole-of-government plans / specific initiatives 

Where applicable, trusts provide services that are consistent with whole-of-government plans and 

specific initiatives addressing particular issues for Queensland, such as Great Barrier Reef water 

quality related objectives for those trusts in that catchment area. 

2.3 Agency objectives and performance indicators 

Many trusts reported that they were not able to meet objectives or perform consistently with their 

strategic plans. One of the main difficulties cited was amount of funds available to carry out planned 

works. Approval was given to the Burdekin, Cairns, Cassowary Don, Herbert, Ipswich, Whitsunday 

and Wambo River Improvement Trusts to have their annual works program for 17-18 extended until 

31 December 2018. At the time of printing all of these works programs have been completed for all 

trusts except for Ipswich Rivers Improvement Trust.   

2.4 Agency services areas and service standards 

Trusts do not report on service delivery standard outputs and output performance measures in 

relation to the State Budget. However, as of the 2016–17 financial year Trusts are required to report 

on their annual works programs by providing data through the enQuire reporting platform. Summaries 

of annual works and operations of each river improvement trust are also provided in section 9, 

Overview of operations and forward operations. 

2.5 Machinery of government changes 

The trusts were not subject to any machinery-of-government changes during the year. 
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3 Non-financial performance—works 

3.1 Capital works 

A trust is required to prepare an annual program of works for submission to the State Council of River 

Trusts Queensland (SCRTQ). Trusts are required to submit a report to the department about its 

undertaking and maintenance of works each financial year.  

Planning for works may include: 

• assessing the amount of funding required to carry out the works 

• investigation and design work 

• identifying required approvals. 

A trust must obtain advice from suitably qualified persons, including required permits, about its 

undertaking or maintenance of works to ensure intended outcomes are achieved, before undertaking 

any of the works. 

During the year, trusts undertook a range of capital works in their river improvement areas, including 

flood mitigation projects, riparian zone management and improvement projects, structural works and 

planning projects. 

3.2 Maintenance 

During the year six trusts; Cairns, Don, Ipswich, Scenic Rim, Stanthorpe and Whitsunday, reported 

undertaking maintenance work on their assets, including: 

• general river maintenance as a result of heavy rainfall and flooding 

• river vegetation removal  

• riverbank restoration works 

• the control of environmental weeds. 

3.3 Improvement notices  

Under the RIT Act, a trust may issue a notice prohibiting a person from doing or allowing any act, 

matter or thing which the trust believes will cause, or contribute to, damage to any stream bank in its 

benefited area, or is likely to cause such damage in the future. If damage has already occurred, the 

notice may require the person to remedy the damage and restore the surrounding area. 

An improvement notice is registered as an encumbrance on the title to land affected by the 

improvement notice. This encumbrance remains in place until such time as the notice is complied with 

in full. Failure to comply with a notice is an offence for which a person may be prosecuted. No notices 

were issued during the 2017 – 18 financial year. 
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4 Financial operations 

4.1 Audit 

Under the Auditor-General Act 2009, the Queensland Auditor-General is required to audit the 2017 –

18 financial statements for each trust (see section 5 for a summary, and Appendix B for the full 

financial statements). 

At the time of printing four of the 11 trusts have submitted financial statements to the Queensland 

Audit Office (QAO) of which two have been audited by QAO. The remaining trusts had not met 

submission time frames required for audit completion. Financial statements of the Burdekin, Cairns, 

Cassowary, Herbert, Ipswich, and Whitsunday River Improvement Trusts remain outstanding and as 

such are not included in the figures provided below. 

4.2 Income 

4.2.1 Precepts 

During the year, six trusts reported collecting a total of $639 986 from precepts issued by the trusts on 

the relevant local government under section 14 of the RIT Act. Individual precept amounts as given 

trusts annual reports are listed in Table 2. 

Table 2 – Precept information. 

River/s improvement trusts 
Precept  

($) 

Cairns River Improvement Trust $200 000 

Don River Improvement Trust $165 493 

Ipswich Shire Rivers Improvement Trust $22 000 

Scenic Rim Rivers Improvement Trust $50 000 

Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust $37 000  

Whitsunday Shire Rivers Improvement Trust $165 493 

4.2.2 Loans 

No new borrowings were raised by trusts during the year under the state borrowing program, and no 

trusts had a current loan. 

4.2.3 Grants and subsidies 

For the financial year 2017–18, trusts reported a total of approximately $1 938 605 in grants and 

subsidies received from sources including state grant funds allocated by the SCRTQ and local 

government.  

Under a grant agreement between the State and the SCRTQ, grant money is provided to the SCRTQ 

for allocation to trusts to enable them to carry out individual projects that meet the State’s interests 

and are approved under the annual works program. 

In the 2017–18 financial year, under this grant agreement, the Queensland Government (through the 

department) provided trusts with a grant of $600 000 (GST exclusive) towards the cost of approved 

works. An agreement to extend the work program completion date until December 2018 for the Don 

and Whitsunday Trusts was executed in June 2017, this was due to rising river levels caused by 

Cyclone Debbie. 
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4.2.4 Other income 

During the 2017–18 year, trusts received a total of approximately $478 595 in landholder 

contributions, bank interest and sundry receipts. Ipswich RIT sold land assets of $128 000 to Ipswich 

City Council (ICC), which reduced their precept to $22 000. 

4.3 Expenditure 

4.3.1 Capital works 

Expenditure in this category includes funds spent on constructing physical assets (for example levees 

and riverbank protection), revegetating riverbanks and clearing streams. Planning exercises are also 

classed as capital works. 

A total of approximately $1 066 229 was spent by six trusts on capital works during the year, 

representing approximately 45.17 per cent of total reported trust expenditure. 

 

4.3.2 Maintenance of works 

Maintenance expenditure relates to the cost of ongoing maintenance of physical assets, such as 

topping up rock protection work and removing weeds that impair the growth of revegetation work. 

A total of approximately $76 495 was spent by two trusts in maintaining assets during the year, 

representing approximately 4.35 per cent of total reported trust expenditure. 

4.3.3 Restoration work 

Restoration work includes the restoration of assets damaged by cyclones and flooding, and riverbank 

stabilisation. During the year, Cairns RIT reported undertaking restoration works totalling $ 267 460 

representing 15.21 per cent of total trust expenditure, on riverbank stabilisation as a result of heavy 

flooding in early 2018. No other expenditure was reported by trusts in 2017-18 for restoration. 

4.3.4 Interest and redemption 

During the year, trusts reported no payments on interest and redemption of capital on existing loans 

(there were also no payments in 2016–17). 

4.3.5 Depreciation 

During the year, a total of approximately $733 205 was recorded for depreciation of assets, 

representing approximately 12.03 per cent of total reported trust expenditure. 

4.3.6 Administration and other costs 

Administration and other costs for the year totalled approximately $101 299 representing 

approximately 5.3 per cent of total reported trust expenditure.  

  



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017–18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  12 

5 Financial performance 

5.1 Summary of financial performance 

The primary source of trust funding during the year was from precepts. As at 30 June 2018, no trusts 

have a loan. 

5.1.1 Letters of compliance 

The chairpersons of 7 of the 11 trusts have certified that their particular water authority’s 2017–18 

annual report complies with the: 

• prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and 

Performance Management Standard 2009. 

• detailed requirements set out in the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’s publication, 

Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies (requirements for the 

2017–18 reporting period). 

5.1.2 Audit report information 

Trusts’ financial data, as per their audited financial statements where available, is tabled in 

Appendix B.  

At the time of printing, independent audit reports on the financial statements of two trusts were not 

finalised; and financial statements of six trusts are yet to be submitted to the department. Unaudited 

financial statements are not included in this summary report in accordance with section 43(4) of the 

Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

Four trusts had submitted financial statements to the Queensland Audit Office by the time of printing. 

The trusts’ are required to prepare general purpose financial statements, with many having identified 

issues with regard to their valuing and reporting on assets, or limited administrative and financial 

capacity. While all trusts have made strong efforts towards making a successful transition to accrual 

accounting, they have nonetheless experienced difficulties with this significant change to their 

accounting and reporting practices.  

5.1.2.1 Summary of independent audit reports for 2017–18 

The Auditor-General has certified the financial statements and issued unqualified opinions for three 

trusts whose audits were completed at the time of printing (Table 3). In accordance with section 40 of 

the Auditor-General Act 2009, the Auditor-General is of the opinion that the: 

• statements meet the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of 

accounts have been complied with in all material respects 

• financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting 

standards—Reduced Disclosure Requirements, of the transactions and financial position of 

the trusts for the financial years 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, and 1 July 2016 to 30 June 

2017.  
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For the trust receiving a qualified audit opinion (Cairns RIT), the basis for the qualified audit opinion 

was sufficient appropriate audit evidence has not been presented by Cairns River Improvement Trust 

to demonstrate that the reversal for prior years revaluations of $1 045 589 (Note 13) charged against 

the asset revaluation surplus and the revaluation decrement of $233 645 (Note 7) charged as an 

expense for the year ended 30 June 2015 are appropriate and in accordance with the requirements of 

Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 

The impact of these matters on the financial report is unable to be quantified due to the absence of 

reliable information. 

The Auditor-General has certified the financial statement and issued a qualified opinion for one trust 

whose audit was completed at the time of printing (Table 3). In accordance with section 40 of the 

Auditor-General Act 2009, the Auditor-General is of the opinion that the: 

• the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of accounts have 

been compiled with in all material respects; and 

• the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed 

accounting standards – reduced disclosure requirements, of the transactions of Cairns River 

Improvement Trust for the financial year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and of the financial 

position as at the end of that year.  

Table 3 – Date of completion of 2017–18 independent audit report. 

Name of trust Date of audit report Audit opinion 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust  16 August 2018 Unqualified 

Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust  31 August 2018 Unqualified 

Cairns River Improvement Trust (2016-17) 24 August 2018 Unqualified 

Cairns River Improvement Trust (2015-16) 24 August 2018 Qualified 

 

  

5.1.2.2 Letters of compliance 

The chairpersons of all trusts that have submitted reports at time of printing have certified that their 

particular trust’s 2017–18 annual report complies with the: 

• prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and 

Performance Management Standard 2009 

• detailed requirements set out in the Annual Report Requirements for Queensland 

Government Agencies. 
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5.2 Correction to the summary of annual reports and financial 
statements for 2016–17 

5.2.1 Completion of independent audit reports for 2016–17 

The Auditor-General completed his independent audit reports on the 2016–17 financial statements for 

four trusts (Table 4). These trusts failed to meet the requirements of section 45(3) of the Financial and 

Performance Management Standard 2009 in relation to allowing the audit of their financial 

statements, and the report of the authorised auditor about the statements to be completed within two 

months of the end of the financial year to which the statements relate.  

The Auditor-General provided an unqualified audit opinion in relation to the financial statements of 

four trusts. In relation to those four trusts the Auditor-General certified in accordance with section 40 

of the Auditor-General Act 2009 that he had received all the information and explanations which he 

required, and in his opinion the: 

• prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of accounts had been 

complied with in all material respects. 

• financial report presented a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting 

standards—Reduced Disclosure Requirements, of the transactions of the Trust for the 

financial year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 of the financial position as at the end of that year. 

 

 

Table 4 – Date of completion of 2016–17 independent audit reports. 

Name of river improvement trust  Date of independent 
audit report 

Audit opinion 

Burdekin Shire River Improvement Trust (2016–17) 23 November 2017 Unqualified 

Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust (2016–17) 1 December 2017 Unqualified 

Stanthorpe River Improvement Trust (2016–17) 17 October 2017 Unqualified 

Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust (2016–17) 2 November 2017 Unqualified 
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6 Governance—management and structure 

6.1 Organisational structure 

Membership of each trust consists of two councillors of each constituent local government for the 

trust, appointed by the local government; and up to three persons appointed by the Minister. 

Additionally, if the Minister considers it appropriate, each constituent local government for a trust may 

appoint a third councillor as a member of the trust. The trust elects its chairperson from those 

members whose appointment was made by the Minister. 

All members other than local government appointees hold office for a term of no more than four years 

as decided by the Minister. Councillors are appointed for a term of no more than four years as 

decided by the local government. Each trust is required by the RIT Act to appoint one of its members 

other than the chairperson to be deputy chairperson. The trust members manage the trusts’ 

operations. As at 30 June 2018, the total trust membership comprised:  

• 8 chairpersons appointed by the Minister (previously the Governor in Council) 

• 2 acting chairperson appointed by the Minister (previously the Governor in Council) 

• 20 local government appointees 

• 16 additional members appointed by either the Governor in Council or the Minister 

• 9 vacant positions. 

Trusts were reminded during the year to commence a selection process where community member 

terms had expired. 

6.2 Secretarial and operational support staff 

Under the RIT Act, each trust must have a secretary and may employ other officers if it is deemed 

necessary. For approximately half of the trusts, the secretary is an employee of the relevant local 

government. Generally, the only other operational support is an engineer who, in most cases, is also 

the regional or shire engineer of the relevant local government. Trust information including staff 

details, other positions held and appointment dates, is provided in section 10.  

No staff received a voluntary early retirement package during the 2017–18 year. 

6.3 Executive management (meetings of the board) 

Trusts must meet at least twice per year, and each trust meets as required for the conduct of their 

operations.  

A summary of the information received at time of printing is provided below. 
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Table 5 – Summary of meetings held 1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018 

River improvement trust 
Meetings 

held 
River improvement trust 

Meetings 

held 

Cairns River Improvement Trust 
5 Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement 

Trust 
2 

Don River Improvement Trust 
4 Warwick Shire River Improvement 

Trust 
8 

Ipswich Rivers Improvement Trust 5 Whitsunday Rivers Improvement 
Trust 

5 

Scenic Rim Rivers Improvement 
Trust 

2 
 

 

 

6.4 Government bodies (statutory bodies and other entities) 

Queensland Government agencies must report information about government bodies relevant to their 

agency that were active at any time during the financial year. Further details of meetings held, 

remuneration paid, and related expenses can be seen in Appendix A. Remuneration of chairpersons 

and members. 

Chairpersons and members of a trust are entitled to be paid the fees and allowances as legislated in 

the section 20B of the RIT Act. The fees and allowances payable to chairpersons and members, as 

approved by the former Minister for Natural Resources and Mines on 28 July 2014, are as follows:  

• a daily meeting fee of $390 for chairpersons and $300 for members 

• half the daily fee if the meeting is of four hours duration or less 

• all necessary and reasonable expenses incurred while travelling on approved trust business 

and to attend meetings in accordance with the following arrangements: 

− economy class air travel 

− travelling and motor vehicle allowances, as per the directives current at the time the 

expense was incurred, as varied from time to time by the Governor in Council. 

During the 2017–18 financial year, the total amount of reported daily meeting fees paid by trusts to 

chairpersons was $12 996. The total amount of reported meeting fees as paid by trusts to members 

(exclusive of chairpersons) was $6750. Other expenses paid by the trusts to chairpersons and 

members—including motor vehicle and travelling allowances, as prescribed in the relevant directives, 

as well as reasonable out-of-pocket expenses—totalled $8158. 
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6.5 Conferences 

The annual conference and general meeting of the SCRTQ was held in Brisbane from 1–3 November 

2017 and was hosted by the SCRTQ Incorporated. Representatives from most of the trusts attended 

the conference. 

6.6 Public Sector Ethics Act 

Members are reminded of their obligations when appointed to their respective trusts and advised to 

access to the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’s publication titled ‘Welcome Aboard: A Guide 

for Members of Queensland Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities’. Further to 

this, compliance with the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 requires trusts to have in place a Code of 

Conduct, with seven trusts reporting that they have adopted a code of conduct.  

6.7 Public interest disclosures 

Trusts are no longer required to report on any public interest disclosures (PIDs) made to them in their 

annual reports. Instead, trusts are to log any PIDs with the Queensland Ombudsman, with the 

assistance as required of the department.  

However, under section 28 of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2010, trusts must establish 

reasonable procedures for dealing with PIDs and publishing them on a publicly accessible website. 

To assist trusts to comply with this obligation the department established such procedures which it 

now hosts on a departmental website on behalf of trusts.  

All trusts report that their boards have adopted these procedures which are accessible at 

https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/water/catchments/trusts  
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7 Governance—risk management and accountability 

7.1 Risk management 

For the purpose of enabling the department to assess the financial viability of the trusts at the end of a 

financial year, each trust is requested to submit: 

• its financial statements 

• a prudential assessment questionnaire 

• an entity indebtedness statement 

• a budget for the next financial year.  

Based on this information, the department conducts an annual risk management and governance 

assessment of these entities.  Due to late submissions from some trusts the department is unable to 

complete a review of risk management and accountability. 

7.2 Audit committee 

The trusts’ members undertake the role of an audit committee by ensuring appropriate accounting 

standards are used for their trusts and there is proper examination of their trusts’ financial 

arrangements. 

7.3 Internal audit 

When required, the trusts undertake internal audit functions. There is nothing to report for the 2017–

18 financial year. 

7.4 External scrutiny 

Except for the audits of the financial statements carried out by the Queensland Audit Office, no 

external auditor reviews of trusts’ operations occurred during the reporting period. 

7.5 Information systems and recordkeeping 

Some trusts use record keeping systems established by their constituent local governments, while 

others have established their own systems. Seven trusts have reported that their record keeping 

complies with the Public Records Act 2002. 
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8 Open data 

Where available, information in relation to the below areas will be made publically accessible at the 

Government’s Open Data website:   www.data.qld.gov.au. 

8.1 Consultancies 

During the year, various trusts reported expenditure on consultancies for their works, for professional 

and technical services, project design, supervision of projects, general inspections, reporting, meeting 

attendances and financial/accounting services at approximately $20 791. 

Information in relation to consultancies expenditure of trusts is publicly accessible online at the 

Government’s Open Data website www.data.qld.gov.au. 

8.2 Overseas travel 

Trust members did not travel overseas on trust business during the year. 

  



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017–18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  20 

9 Overview of operations and forward operations 

At the time of printing, the Burdekin Shire River Improvement Trust had not submitted an annual 

report.  

The Cairns River Improvement Trust reports that during the 2017–18 year, the trust continued to 

stabilise and improve the condition of the rivers, and repair and prevent flood damage for urban and 

rural communities. In 2018 a disaster declaration by the State Government was issued as a result of 

periods of significant rainfall in January and very heavy rainfall in late March and early April resulting 

in flooding in the Barron, Mulgrave and Russell catchments. The Trust carried out a preliminary 

assessment of flood damage and received many reports of flood breakouts and river bank damage 

from landowners. The worst of the flooding and flood damage was in the northern areas of the lower 

Barron and Mulgrave catchments. The Trust continues to take opportunities to take part in joint 

projects with catchment groups and schools that are focussed on revegetation of river and creek 

banks and riparian areas. The trust was successful in completing major river bank restoration and 

stabilisation works in the Russell River and Woopen Creek above the Bruce Highway, and bank 

restoration works at a number of other sites in Blackfellows Creek (Edmonton), Sandy Creek 

(Babinda), minor tributaries of the Barron River (Stratford) and Clarkes Creek in the inner suburbs of 

Cairns. The trust has undertaken work at over 560 sites. The Trust completed works included in the 

2017–18 Annual Work Plan and those carried over will be completed by November 2018. During the 

year, contributions came from local government (Cairns Regional Council), State Government and 

landowners. The trust reported the need to urgently develop a strategy regarding funding the costs of 

flood damage restoration and natural disaster resilience activities.  

At the time of printing, the Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust had not submitted an annual 

report.  

During the 2017–18 year, the Don River Improvement Trust continued to observe and maintain its 

assets, which are checked after any significant event to ensure there has been no substantial 

damage. Following the event of Cyclone Debbie, the Don River broke its banks causing the 

destruction of farming crops and equipment resulting in the annual works program being extended 

until September 2017. Asset maintenance activities including spraying weeds in the Don River and 

pushing sand in areas of high build up, making sand dams to redirect water, and the construction of a 

rock wall at lnverdon Bridge. The trust reports that it continues to face issues with sand build-up in the 

Don River, and is liaising with the State Government about control of lease areas to better manage 

weed growth.  The trust also reported that the community are demanding the trust undertake works to 

stop flood water from destroying crops and homes along the river. In the 2018–19 year, the trust plans 

to continue conducting weed eradication by burning and spraying. The trust considers its current 

revenue regime insufficient to allow the trust to undertake the works that the community would like the 

trust to undertake, or to meet any emergent expenses. The trust does not intend borrowing to fund 

capital works and proposes no changes to its operations. However, the trust indicates that changes to 

the National Disaster Mitigation Program and the National Disaster Resilience Program have made 

funding for capital works more difficult to obtain.  

At the time of printing, the Herbert River Improvement Trust had not submitted an annual report. 
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The Ipswich Rivers Improvement Trust continued its riparian vegetation management program in 

2017–18 through the engagement of contractors to remove environmental weeds from sections of the 

Bundamba, Deebing, Ironpot, Franklin Vale, and Woogaroo Creeks. The removal of environmental 

weeds from stream banks was exercised with care to ensure native species were not damaged. The 

continuation of weed removal along riparian areas has seen a significant improvement in the health of 

the waterways and an improvement in water quality. The trust completed a number of capital works 

projects including stream improvement works which followed up the removal of environmental weeds 

in Bundamba, Deebing, Ironpot, Franklin Vale, and Woogaroo Creeks resulting in achieving the trust’s 

target of 100 per cent kill of weeds, and the erection of a rock revetment wall and planting of native 

species to repair and stabilise the stream bank at Woogaroo Creek adjoining Martin Coogan Park at 

Gailes. The trust sold land situated in Mill Street Goodna to Ipswich City Council for $128 000. During 

2018–19, the trust will continue to carry out further stream improvement works through eradicating 

environmental weeds in its trust area, and continue revegetating stream banks. The current funding of 

trust activities through a precept from Ipswich City Council will continue. The trust therefore does not 

propose to borrow any funds during the year and anticipates that it has sufficient funds to cover its 

expenses. There will be no changes to the trust’s operations. 

During the 2017–18 year, the Scenic Rim River Improvement Trust continued its riparian 

management program and systematic eradication of invasive weeds across the catchments within the 

trust’s operational area, which is the primary objective of the trust. The trust reports that its rate of 

progress is constrained by funding limitations, the broadening of the trust's eradication programs to 

encompass other pest species, and the resilience of these pest species. During 2016–17 the trust 

entered into a Contribution Agreement with the Queensland Bulk Water Supply Authority (trading as 

Seqwater) to control riparian weeds in Reynolds Creek upstream from its urban water supply intake 

points. This program was continued into FY17–18. The trust also entered into a Contribution 

Agreement with Healthy Land and Water to undertake and complete work in Warrill Creek, Teviot 

Brook, Burnett Creek and Reynolds Creek. By focusing on headwaters and steadily expanding the 

areas clear of these pests the trust is protecting the adjacent World Heritage Listed National Parks. 

This work has made a further contribution to the eradication of the targeted weeds from the stream 

sections identified in the trust's Strategic Plan 2017–2021. 

The Stanthorpe Rivers Improvement Trust completed a number of capital works projects during 

2017–18 including bed and bank stabilisation between Kilpa Street and Railway Street, vegetation 

management at Petrie’s Crossing and Funkers Gap Creek, and a survey and assessment of bed, 

banks and vegetation at selected locations. The trust reports a number of challenges caused by 

recent flood events for example significant degradation to the riverine system which has caused major 

bank stabilisation issues, breakouts, spread of exotic vegetation and erosion and hydraulic capacity 

issues that are beyond the trust’s financial ability.  The trust reported the support provided by the sub-

tropical Cyclone Debbie funding arrangements in 2017–18 to have been most beneficial in addressing 

these challenges.  

The trust has identified various priority issues including the management of nuisance and exotic 

vegetation within riparian zones, revegetation of highly degraded riparian zones, erosion control, flood 

mitigation, control of high threat breakouts, maintenance of flow capacity in hydraulically inefficient 

streams, and protection of public infrastructure. Due to additional funding received from external 

sources the trust’s works program for 2017–18 was not completed. Any uncompleted works from 

2017-18 are incorporated into the trust’s 2018–19 works program. The trust does not plan to borrow 

funds to perform any of its works. 
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At the time of printing, the Wambo Shire River Improvement Trust had not submitted an annual 

report.  

During the 2017–18 year, the Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust works included continued 

clearing of exotics from the river banks and engaging a contractor to carry out excavation work along 

creek beds at Condamine River Road, Condamine River Warwick, Emu Creek, Farm Creek and 

Spring Creek. In the 2018–19 year, the trust proposes to continue improving community awareness of 

riverine values, with coordinated removal of exotic species, particularly in the upper catchment of the 

Condamine River. The trust also proposes to protect public infrastructure where required, reintroduce 

native species in highly degraded areas to improve riparian and instream habitat, undertake 

maintenance of flow capacity in hydraulically inefficient rivers, creeks and tributaries. The trust will 

continue to maintain a working relationship with the Southern Downs Regional Council and the 

SCRTQ ensuring revenue streams are sufficient to meet its annual capital works and maintenance 

obligations against community expectations. The trust is not planning any proposed borrowings to 

fund capital works. 

The Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust reports in 2017–18 that no maintenance was 

performed as the trust was in the planning phase of the annual works program at the time of Cyclone 

Debbie. As a result the works program was extended until September 2017. The trust collaborated 

with Reef Catchments to undertake a regional study after Cyclone Debbie and liaised with Reef 

Catchments vegetation management team to review the trusts vegetation management plan. The 

trust reports that it has completed its annual works program at the O’Connell River, preventing 

erosion to a property owner and improving water quality by stopping sediments from reaching the 

Great Barrier Reef. The trust continues to liaise with Reef Catchments to identify partnership projects. 

The trust reports that the current revenue regime is not sufficient to cover the costs of its works 

program however the trust reports it has funds in reserve to meet unexpected expenses. The trust is 

not planning any proposed borrowings to fund capital works.  
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10 Trust membership and contact details 

Constitutional information and contact details for all trusts in Queensland are listed below in 

alphabetical order by name of trust. Contact and membership details are current as at 30 June 2018. 

A list of trust areas is provided in Table 1, and the general purpose financial statements as received 

for each trust is provided at Appendix B. 

Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 8/02/1941  

Business address: Old Court House 

Eighth Avenue, Home Hill 

PO Box 352, Home Hill Qld 4806 

Telephone: 0417 822 613 

Email: bsrit01@bigpond.com 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr William Huston 

Mr Ryan Jones 

Cr Lyn McLaughlin 

Cr John Woods 

 

Appointment date 

27/11/2013 

23/09/2014 

12/04/2016 

12/04/2016 

 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Ms Melissa Kelly (Secretary) 
 

 

Cairns River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 14/09/1972  

Business address: Cairns Regional Council 

119–145 Spence Street, Cairns 

PO Box 359, Cairns Qld 4870 

Telephone: 07 4044 3193 

Fax: 07 4044 3838 

Email: t.smith@cairns.qld.gov.au 

 

 

Members: Name 

Robert William Lait (Chairperson) 

Cr John Schilling 

Cr Brett Moller 

 

Appointment date 

25/03/2010 

6/06/2016 

6/06/2016 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mr Tim Smith (Secretary and Engineer) 
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Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust  

Date constituted: 2/06/1973  

Business address: Cassowary Coast Regional Council 

38-40 Bryant Street, Tully 

PO Box 887, Innisfail Qld 4860 

Telephone: 07 4043 9127  

Fax: 07 4061 4258 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Sam Pagano (Chairperson) 

Cr Mark Nolan 

Cr Jeffrey Baines 

Mr Ross Sorbello 

Mr Marcus Bulstrode 

 

Appointment date 

27/08/2015 

23/06/2016 

23/06/2016 

27/08/2015 

27/08/2015 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mr William Davis (Secretary) 

Mr Tim Smith (Engineer) 

 

 

 

Don River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 13/03/1947  

Business address: 15 Robert Street, Proserpine 

PO Box 1481, Proserpine Qld 4800 

Telephone: 0438 453 851 

Email: donrivertrust@bigpond.com.au 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Gregory Smith (Chairperson, vacated 
position)  

Cr Dave Clark (Deputy Chair) 

Cr Andrew Wilcox 

Mr Carl Walker 

Mr Ian Shield (Chairperson, appointed 
26/5/18 ) 

Mrs L Smith 

 

Appointment date 

27/11/2013 

 

27/04/2016 

27/04/2016 

29/03/2018  

27/08/2015 

 

29/03/2018 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mrs Joanne Linneweber, Secretary 

Mr Tim Smith (Trust Engineer) 
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Herbert River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 08/01/1942  

Business address: Hinchinbrook Shire Council 

Lannercost Street, Ingham 

PO Box 366, Ingham Qld 4850 

Telephone: 07 4776 4600 

Fax: 07 4776 3233 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Robert Bosworth (Chairperson) 

Cr Andrew Lancini  

Cr Wally Skinner 

Mr Gary Accornero 

Mr Keith Phillips 

 

Appointment date 

11/04/2013 

06/05/2016 

06/05/2016 

11/04/2013 

11/04/2013 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Ms Leigh Carr (Secretary) 

Mr Bruce Leach (Engineer) 

 

 

 

Ipswich Rivers Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 15/08/1959  

Business address: Ipswich City Council  

Hayden Centre, South Street, Ipswich 

PO Box 191, Ipswich Qld 4305 

Telephone: 07 3378 5986 or  
0409 263 812 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Peter Phillips (Chairperson) 

Cr Paul Tully 

Cr David Pahlke 

Mr Ian Harsant 

Mr Peter Johnstone 

Appointment date 

27/08/2015 

06/05/2016 

06/05/2016 

27/08/2015 

27/08/2015 

 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

 

Mr Norman Craswell (Secretary) 

 

 

 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017–18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  26 

Scenic Rim Rivers Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 29/03/1975 
Date Renamed: 
7/11/2008 

Business address: C/o Scenic Rim Regional Council 

82 Brisbane Street, Beaudesert 

PO Box 25, Beaudesert Qld 4285 

Telephone: 07 5540 5111 

Fax: 07 5540 5103 

 

 

Members: Name 

Dr Peter Prenzler (Chairperson) 

Cr Duncan McInnes 

Cr Nadia O’Carroll 

Mr Morris McInnes 

Mr Dale Anderson 

 

Appointment date 

05/08/2013 

19/04/2016 

26/06/2016 

05/08/2013 

05/08/2013 

 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mr Randall Deans (Secretary) 
 

 

 

Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 01/05/1986  

Business address: Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement 
Trust  

232 Glen Niven Road 

Glen Niven  

PO Box 81 

The Summit , Qld 4377 

Telephone: 0400 750 351  

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Greg Thouard (chairperson) 

Mr Stephen Bell 

Cr Vic Penisi 

Cr Marika McNichol 

 

Appointment date 

01/08/2014 

18/09/2015 

23/06/2016 

23/06/2016 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Ms Leanne Wilson  
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Wambo Shire River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 20/02/1960  

Business address: Western Downs Regional Council 
Customer Service Centre 

Marble Street, Dalby 

PO Box 551, Dalby Qld 4405 

Telephone: 1300 268 6245 

Fax: 07 4679 4098 

Email: info@wdrc.qld.gov.au 

 

 

Members: Name 

Cr Greg Olm (Acting Chairperson) 

Cr Andrew Smith 

 

Appointment date 

1 April 2016 

1 April 2016 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mr Graham Parsons (Secretary) 

 

 

 

 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 13/02/1998  

Business address: C/o Southern Downs Regional Council  

64 Fitzroy Street, Warwick 

PO Box 26, Warwick Qld 4370 

Telephone: 1300 697 372  

Fax: 07 4661 0333 

 

 

Members: Name 

Mr Edward Kemp (Chair) 

Mr Ian Mapes 

Cr Vic Pennisi 

Cr Rod Kelly 

 

Appointment date 

27/11/2013 

27/11/2013 

23/06/2016 

21/06/2017 

 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mrs Barbara Fagan 
(Secretary and Treasurer) 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

Date constituted: 25/05/1974  

Business address: Whitsunday Regional Council 

PO Box 1341, Proserpine Qld 4800 

Telephone: 07 4945 1052 

 

 

Members: Name 

Cr John Collins (Acting Chair) 

Cr Jan Clifford 

Mr Anthony Large 

Ms Iuliia Bennett (resigned) 

 

Appointment date 

01/04/2016 

01/04/2016 

27/08/2015 

27/08/2015 

 

Administrative or operational 
support: 

Mrs Joanne Linneweber (Secretary) 
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11 Annual report requirements for Queensland Government 
agencies 

The compliance checklist provided in Table 4 indicates where the annual report requirements (ARRs) 

for Queensland Government agencies for the 2015–16 reporting period are addressed in this report. 

The relevant legislative provisions are also provided. 

Table 6 – Compliance checklist 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Report reference 

Letter of 
compliance 

• A letter of compliance from the 
accountable officer or statutory body 
to the relevant Minister/s 

ARRs – section 7 Section 5.1.1 

5.1.2 

Accessibility • Table of contents 

• Glossary 

ARRs – section 9.1 Page iii 

Section 12 

• Public availability ARRs – section 9.2 Section 1.1 

• Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy 

ARRs – section 9.3 

N/A 

• Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 

ARRs – section 9.4 

Inside cover 

• Information Licensing QGEA – Information 
Licensing 

ARRs – section 9.5 

Inside cover 

General 
information 

• Introductory Information ARRs – section 10.1 Section 1.1 

• Agency role and main functions ARRs – section 10.2 Sections 1.3 

• Operating environment ARRs – section 10.3 Sections 2, 3, 6, 7 

• Machinery of Government ARRs – section 31 section 
32 

Section 2.5 

Non-financial 
performance 

• Government’s objectives for the 
community 

ARRs – section 11.1 Section 2.1 

• Other whole-of-government plans / 
specific initiatives 

ARRs – section 11.2 Section 2.2 

• Agency objectives and performance 
indicators 

ARRs – section 11.3 Section 2.3 

• Agency service areas and service 
standards 

ARRs – section 11.4 Section 2.4 

Financial 
performance 

• Summary of financial performance ARRs – section 12.1 Section 5.1 

Governance—
management 
and structure 

• Organisational structure ARRs – section 13.1 Sections 6.1, 6.2 

• Executive management ARRs – section 13.2 Section 6.3 

• Government bodies (statutory bodies 
and other entities) 

ARRs – section 13.3 Section 6.4 
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Report reference 

• Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 
1994 

ARRs – section 13.4 

Section 6.6 

• Queensland public service values ARRs – section 13.5 N/A 

Governance—
risk 
management 
and 
accountability 

• Risk management ARRs – section 14.1 Section 7.1 

• Audit committee ARRs – section 14.2 Section 7.2 

• Internal audit ARRs – section 14.3 Section 7.3 

• External scrutiny ARRs – section 14.4 Section 7.4 

• Information systems and 
recordkeeping 

ARRs – section 14.5 Section 7.5 

Governance—
human 
resources 

• Workforce planning and performance ARRs – section 15.1 Section 6.2 

• Early retirement, redundancy and 
retrenchment 

Directive 16/16 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy 
and Retrenchment 

Directive 04/18 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy 
and Retrenchment  

ARRs – section 15.2 

N/A 

Open Data • Statement advising publication of 
information 

ARRs – section 16 Section 8 

• Consultancies ARRs – section 16  

ARRs – section 33.1 

Section 8.1 

• Overseas travel ARRs – section 16  

ARRs – section 33.2 

Section 8.2 

• Queensland Language Services 
Policy 

ARRs – section 16  

ARRs – section 33.3 

N/A 

Financial 
statements 

• Certification of financial statements FAA – section 62 

FPMS – sections 42, 43 
and 50  

ARRs – section 17.1 

Section 5.1.1; 
Appendix B 

• Independent Auditor’s Report FAA – section 62 FPMS – 
section 50  

ARRs – section 17.2 

Section 5.1.2; 
Appendix B 
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12 Glossary 

ARRs  Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies 

DPC  Department of the Premier and Cabinet 

DNRM  Department of Natural Resources and Mines 

FAA  Financial Accountability Act 2009 

FPMS  Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 

NDRRA  Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements 

SCRTQ  State Council of River Trusts Queensland 
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Appendix A: Annual report requirements for Queensland 
Government agencies for the 2017-2018 reporting period—13.3 
Government bodies (statutory bodies and other entities) 

 
Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Interim Chair  Mr William John 

Huston 

  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Ryan Jones    $300 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor John 

Woods  

  0 N/A  

Deputy Chair  Councillor Lyn 

McLaughlin  

  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

$4380.68 
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Cairns River Improvement Trust

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Mr Robert William 

Lait  

  $195 daily N/A $ 

Deputy Chair  Councillor John 

Schilling 

  0 N/A 0 

Member  Councillor Brett 

Moller 

  0 N/A 0 

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

0 
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Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust 

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Mr Samuel Alfred 

Pagano 

  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Marcus Hugh 

Bulstrode 

  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Ross Sorbello    $300 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor Mark 
Nolan 

  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Jeffery 
Baines  

  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 
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Don River Improvement Trust

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees received 

Chair  Mr Gregory James 

Smith 

  $14023 N/A $14 023 

Member  Mr Carl Ivor 

Walker 

  $150 daily N/A $300 

Member  Mr Ian William 

Shield 

  $150 daily N/A $750 

Member  Councillor David 

John Clark 

  $150 daily N/A $300 

Member  Mayor Andrew 

Willcox 

  $150 daily N/A $300 

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

0 
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Herbert River Improvement Trust –  

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair   Mr Robert Arthur 

Bosworth 

N/A  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Keith Thomas 

Phillips 

N/A  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Gary 

Bartolomeo 

Accornero 

N/A  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor Wallis 

George Skinner 

N/A  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Andrew 

Lancini 

N/A  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

N/A 

 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017–18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  37 

 

 

Ipswich Rivers Improvement Trust –  

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Mr Peter Phillips  N/A  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Ian Harsant   N/A  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Peter 

Johnstone 

N/A  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor David 

Allen Pahlke 

N/A  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Paul 

Tully 

N/A  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

N/A 
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Scenic Rim Rivers Improvement Trust 

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Dr Peter Ross 

Prenzler 

  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Morris George 

McInnes 

  $300 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Dale Leslie 

Anderson 

1  $300 daily N/A 0 

Member  Councillor Nadia 

O’Carroll 

3  0 N/A 0 

Member  Councillor Duncan 

McInnes  

2  0 N/A 0 

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 
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Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust ‐  

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Mr Gregory 

Thouard 

N/A  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Mr Stephen Bell  N/A   $300 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor Vic 

Penisi  

N/A  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Marika 

McNichol  

N/A  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 
meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 
expenses 

N/A 

 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017–18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  40 

 

 

Wambo Shire River Improvement Trust ‐  

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Acting Chair  Councillor Greg 

Olm 

N/A  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Andrew 

Smith 

N/A  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

N/A 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration 

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 

attendance 

Approved annual, 

sessional or daily 

fee  

Approved sub‐

committee fees if 

applicable 

Actual fees 

received  

Chair  Mr Edward Lyle 

Kemp 

6  $390 daily N/A $1107 

Member  Mr Ian Alfred 

Mapes 

6  $300 daily N/A $967.50 

Member  Councillor Vic 

Pennisi  

6  0 N/A 0 

Member  Councillor Rod 

Kelly  

0  0 N/A 0 

No. scheduled 
meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

0 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

Act or instrument  River Improvement Trust Act 1940

Functions  Protect and improve rivers, repair and prevent damage to rivers and prevent or mitigate flooding of land by 

riverine floods. 

Achievements  Achievements are outlined in the individual annual reports.

Financial reporting  Not exempted from audit by the Auditor‐General. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the financial 

statements. 

Remuneration  

Position  Name  Meetings/sessions 
attendance 

Approved annual, 
sessional or daily 
fee  

Approved sub‐
committee fees if 
applicable 

Actual fees 
received  

Ex Chair  Mrs Patricia Botto 

(Deceased 13 

October 2016) 

1  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Ms Iuliia Bennett 

(Resigned) 

5  $300 daily N/A  

Chair  Mr Anthony Joseph 

Large 

4  $390 daily N/A  

Member  Councillor John 

Collins 

5  0 N/A  

Member  Councillor Jan 

Clifford 

3  0 N/A  

No. scheduled 

meetings/sessions 

 

Total out of pocket 

expenses 

$ 
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Appendix B: 2017–18 audit reports 

2017–18 financial statements of entities audited at time of tabling of this year’s summary 

report  

Audited financial statements and independent audit reports of trusts that have been received at time 

of printing are provided alphabetically for the following trusts: 

 2017–18 Audited financial statements for Stanthorpe River Improvement Trust  

 2017–18: Audited financial statements Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

 2016–17: Audited financial statements for Cairns River Improvement Trust 

 2015–16: Audited financial statements for Cairns River Improvement Trust 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT oi: COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

Income From Continuing Operations 

Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 

Total Income From Continuing Operations 

Expenses From Continuing Operations 

River Trust Protection Works 

Member's Fees 

Supplies and Services 

Total Expenses From Continuing Operations 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Notes 

2 

3 
4 
5 

2018 
$ 

215,710 
215,710 

168,972 

564 
15,394 

184,930 

30,780 -

30,780 

2017 
$ 

80,228 
80,228 

99,037 
l,852 

8,641 
109,530 

29,302 

29,302 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Payables 
Tota l Current Uabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Equity 

Accumulated Surplus 

Total Equity 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Notes 

6 
7 

8 

9 

2018 

$ 

59,260 
16,891 
76,151 

76,151 

14,003 
14,003 

14,003 

62,147 

62,147 
62,147 

2017 
$ 

43,638 
2,745 

46,383 

46,383 

15,016 
15,016 

15,016 

31,367 

31,367 
31,367 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

Balance as at 1 July 2016 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 

Balance as at 1 July 2017 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at 30 June 2018 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Accumulated 

Surplus 

$ 

60,669 

29,302 

31,367 

31,367 

30,780 

62,147 

Asset 

Revaluation 

Surplus 

$ 
Total 

$ 

60,669 

29,302 

31,367 

31,367 

30,780 

62,147 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

Notes 2018 2017 

$ $ 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Inflows 
Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 202,850 80,228 

Interest Received 

Other Revenue 
GST Input Tax Credits From ATO 

GST Collected From Customers 20,285 8,023 

Outflows 

River Trust Protection Works - 178,384 - 89,624 

Member's Fees 726 - 1,852 

Chq no. 390 from 2014/15 written back (Gow member fee) 162 

Supplies and Services 9,950 - 6,541 

GST Remitted to ATO 

GST Paid To Suppliers - 18,615 - 9,617 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 15,622 - 19,383 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Inflows 

Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Outflows 
Payments for Property, Plant & Equipment 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,622 - 19,383 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Financial Year 43,638 63,021 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 6 59,260 43,638 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

1.A Basis of Preparation 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, 

Australian Accounting interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by 

the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except 

for the revaluation of certain non-current assets. 

1.B Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability 

Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the 

River Trust has applied those requirements appl icable to not-for-profit entities, as the River 

Trust is a not-for-profit public sector entity. 

1.C Date of Authorisation 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the 

Auditor-General for final signature. This is the date the management certificate is signed. 

1.0 Currency 

The River Trust uses the Austra lian Dollar as its functiona l and presentation currency. 

1.E The Reporting Entity 

The River Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements include the value of 

all revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity for the River Trust as an Individual entity. 

1.F Revenue 

Precepts, grants and other contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as 

revenue in the year in which the Trust obtains control over them. Where grants are received 

that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively recognised as it is earned, according to 

the funding agreements. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

1.G Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand, cash and cheques receipted at 30 June, 

deposits held at call with financial Institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid 

investments with original mat urities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 

known amounts of cash and which are subj ect to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.H Acquisition of Assets 

The River Trust currently holds no assets. 

1.1 Property Plant and Equipment 

The River Trust currently holds no property plant and equipment. 

lJ Intangibles 

The River Trust currently holds no intangible assets. 

1.K Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are 

measured at the agreed purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other 

discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 days terms. 

1.L Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 

when the River Trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financia l 

instrument. 

Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents- held at fair value through profit and loss 

2. Receivables - held at amortised cost 

3. Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair values. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented on a net basis in 

the Statement of Financial Position. 

The River Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative 

purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the River Trust holds no 

financial assets classified at fair value through profit and loss. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANQAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

1.M Provisions 

The River Trust currently has no provision liabilities. 

1.N Insurance 

The River Trust will pay insurance premiums to LGM Queensland in respect of Its obligations 

for public liability and professional indemnity. 

1.0 Taxation 

The River Trust is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 

and is exempted from other forms of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Goods 

and Services Tax (GST). GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are 

recognised. 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 

circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset, or as part 

of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are 

shown inclusive of GST. 

1.P Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of 

certain critical accounting estimates, assumptions and management judgements that have 

the potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabil ities 

within the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period In which the estimate is revised, and in future periods as relevant. 

1.Q Comparatives 

There has been no restatement of comparative information. 

1.R New and Revi.sed Accounting Standards 

There have been no new or revised Accounting Standards adopted by the River Trust. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

1.S Contributions 

The River Trust acknowledges the contribution by Southern Downs Regional Council in the 

supply of some engineering assistance. The value of the contribution received for this 

services has not been included in the statements and the impact of this omission is not 

considered to be material and would not misrepresent the truthfulness of the statement. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

2. Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 

Southern Downs Regional Council Precept 37,000 3S,OOO 
State Council of River Trusts Queensland Grant 51,850 

DNRM Audit Fee Subsidy 45,228 
Queensland Murr.ay-Darling Committee 92,860 
Conda mine Alliance 34,000 
TOTAL 215,710 80,228 

3. River Trust Protection Works 
168,972 99,037 

TOTAL 168,972 99,037 

4. Member's Fees 

Details of Key Management Personnel: 
The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those Trust positions 
that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
Trust during 2017-18 and 2016-17 year. 

Position Position Responslblllty 

Chairperson 
Responsible for presiding over general 
meetings; ensuring smooth running of the 
Trust and liaising with, advising and attending 
to the community in relation to their concerns 
associated with river Improvement. 

Deputy Chairperson Steps into the role of Chairperson when 
necessary. 

Member Represents the community on the River 
Trust Committee. 

Remuneration is made in accordance with the current Government policy titled Remuneration 
of Part-Time Chairs and Members of Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities. 

Mr Greg Thouard (Chairperson) 
Mr Stephen Bell (Member) 
Cr Gow members fee unpresented chq 390 
TOTAL 

426 
300 
162 
564 

1,252 
600 

1,852 

The Trust approved payment to the Chairman of $7,216 reflecting allowances for his extended role 
in the day-to-day management of the Trust following resignation of the Secretary and for project 
management of t he 2017-18 annual works . This amount is included in secretariat services in Note 5. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

5. Supplies and Services 

Audit Fees 

Conferences, Seminars and Training 

Other Costs · Insurance 

Membership· State Council of River Trusts Queensland 

Secretariat Services 

TOTAL 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

NAB Cheque Account 

TOTAL 

7. Receivables 

Account5 Receivable 

ATO GST Refund 
TOTAL 

8. Property, Plant ;and Equipment 

2018 

$ 

2,200 
876 

2,272 
1,300 
8,746 

15,394 

59,260 
59,260 

14,146 
2,745 

16,891 

2017 

$ 

4,200 

1,216 
1,200 
2,025 
8,641 

43,638 
43,638 

2,745 
2,745 

The committee has reviewed previous works performed by the River Trust. None of these works 

meet the definition of what is an asset. Therefore, no assets are recorded in the statements. 

9. Payables 

Accounts Payable 5,344 10,354 
Accrued Audit Fee 2,420 2,310 
ATO GST Payment 6,239 2,352 
TOTAL 14,003 15,016 
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Sta nthorpe Shi re 
River Improvement Trust 

PO Box 81 
The summit QLD 4377 

Ph: 0400 750 351 
Email: stanthorpeRIT@gmail.com 

STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017-18 

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE OF STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62 (1) (a) of 
the Financial Accountability Ad 2009 (the Act), section 43 of the Financial Performance and 
Management Standard 2009, and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with section 62 
(1) (b) of the Act, we certify that in our opinion: 

(i) the prescribed requirements in respect of the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial statements have been drawn up so as to present a true and fair view, 
in accordance with prescribed accounting st:lndards, of the transactions of the 
Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 
2018, and of the financial position of the River Trust as at the end of that year; 
and 

(iii) these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk 
management processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to 
financial reporting throughout the reporting period. 

14 August 2018 

14 August 2018 

Mr Greg Thouard 
Chairman 

4~CV\ 
Ms Leanne Wilson 

Secretary 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement 
Trust. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2018, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management 
certificate. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, Which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report In Australia. I 
have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the 
Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements, and for such Internal control as the Board determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  56 

• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

Better public services 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financ.ial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's ir')tcrnal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my 
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Income From Continuing Operations 

Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 

Interest Received 

Total Income From Continuing Operations 

Expenses From Continuing Operations 

River Trust Protection Works 

Member's Fees 

Supplies and Services 
Total Expenses From Continuing Operations 

Operatin1 Surplus/(Deflcit) For The Year 

Total Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 
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Notes 

2 (a) 
2 (b) 

3 
4 

5 

2018 
$ 

111,657 
8,558 

120,215 

271,815 
2,898 

32,563 
307,276 

(187,061) 

(187,061) 

2017 
$ 

240,862 
8,766 

249,628 

8,097 
2,715 

13,574 
24,387 

225,241 

225,241 
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Current A ssets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables 

Other 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at 30 June 2018 

. Notes 

6 
7 
8 

Property, Plant and Equipment 9 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Payables 10 
Total Cur rent Liabilities 

Total Liabi lit ies 

Net Assets (Liabilities) 

Equity 

Accumulated Surplus 

Total Equity 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 
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2018 
$ 

520,787 

2,573 
523,360 

523,360 

979 
979 

979 

522,380 

522,380 
522,380 

2017 

$ 

721,83.3 

2,73.4 
724,567 

724,567 

15,126 
15,126 

15,126 

709,441 

709,441 
709,441 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 
Statement of Changes in Equity 

Balance as at 1 July 2016 

Operating Surplus/( Deficit) For The Vear 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 

Balance as at 1 July 2017 

Operating Surplus/( Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

BalanceYTD 

As at 30 June 2018 

Accumulated 

Surplus 

$ 

484,200 
225,241 

709,441 

709,441 

(187,061) 

522,380 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 
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Asset 

Revaluation 

Surplus 

$ 
Total 

$ 

484,200 
225,241 

709,441 

709,441 

(187,061) 

522,380 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Statement of cash Flows 

As at 30 June 2018 

Notes 2018 2017 

$ $ 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Inflows 
Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 111,657 240,862 

Interest Received 8,558 8,766 

GST Input Tax Credits From ATO 14,921 11,467 

G5T Collected From Customers 11,166 24,086 

Outflows 

River Trust Protection Works 271,815 8,097 

Member's Fees 2,898 - 2,715 

Supplies and Services 29,829 - 13,574 

Prepaid Expenses {Insurance) 2,573 - 2,734 

GST Remitted to ATO 9,811 - 7,183 

GST Paid To Suppliers 30,422 - 2,484 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activit ies 201,046 248,394 

cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Inflows 
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Outflows 

Payments for Property, Pia nt & Equipment 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (201,046) 248,394 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Financial Vear 721,833 473,439 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 6 520,787 721,833 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 1 · Basis of Flnandal statement PreparatJon 

fa) General lnfllrmatlon about the Reporting Entity 

These financial statements cover the Warwick Shire Rrver Improvement Trust (the Trust). 
The Trust does not control other entitles. The financial statements Include the value of all 
revenue, expenses, assets, II abilities and e<julty for the Trust as an lnd1llldual entity. 

(b) Authorisation of financial statements for Issue 

The financial statements are authorised for tssue by the Chairperson and the responsible 
officer at the date of signing the Management Certificate. 

(~ COmp~<:ewith Prescribed Requirements 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Rnonclol Accountobllity 
Act 2009 and the FlnancloJ and Performance Management standard 2003. 

The Trus Is a not-for-profit entity and these general purpose financial statements are 
prepared in compllaince with the requ rements of Australian Accounting Standards -
Reduoed Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations applicable to not-for-profit entlt es. 

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis (with the exception of the 
statement of cash flows which Is prepared on a cash basis). 

(d) Pre.se tat:Jon atters 

Olnency and Rounding • Amounts Included in the financial statements are in Australian 
dollars. Amounts are rounded to the nearest dollar. 

Comparatives-Comparative Information reflects the audited 2016-17 financial statements 

current /Non-current aasslf/catfan - Assets are classified as 'current' where their carrjl!ng 

amount Is expected to be reallsed within 12 months after the reporting date. Liabllltles are 
classified as 'curren 'when they are due to be settled within 12 mon hs after the reporting 
date, or the Trust does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement to beyond 12 
months after the reporting date. 

(e) Taxation 

The Trust Is exempted from Income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and Is 

exempted fTom other forms of Commonwealth taxation wrth the exception of fflnge 
Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and services Tax (GST). 
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Note 2 - Revenue 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

(a) Precepts, Grants and Other Cont ributions 

Southern Downs Regional Council Precept 
State Council of River Trusts Queensland Grant 

TOTAL 

2018 

$ 

111,657 
111,657 

2017 

$ 

220,000 
20,862 

240,862 

Precepts, grants and other contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the 

year in which the Trust obtains control over them. Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, 

revenue is progressively recognised as it is earned, according to the funding agreements. 

(b) Interest Revenue 

CBA Cheque Account 
CBA Term Deposits 

TOTAL 

1,068 
7,490 
8,SS8 

1,242 
7,524 

8,766 

Interest revenue is recognised when the revenue is earned and can be measured reliably with a sufficient 

degree of certainty. 

Note 3 - River Trust Protection Works 

Project 15/16 - 06: Exotic Vegetation Removal and bank stability - Farm Creek 
Project 16/17 - 01- Removal of Firethorn - Dalrymple Creek, Goomburra Valley 

Project 16/17 - 02: Removal of Exotic Vegetation - Farm Creek and Emu 

Creek 

Project 16/17 - 03: Native Fingerlings 

Project 16/17 - 04: Removal of Exot ic Vegetation - Spring Creek, Killarney 

Project 17 /18- 03: Removal of Exot ic species - Conda mine River 

upstream of Killarney 

Project 17 /18 - 04 Remova I of Exotic species - Farm & Emu Creek 

downstream of Killarney 

Project 17 /18 - OS: Protect ion of public infrastructure & maintenance of 

flow capacity in hydraulically inefficient rivers, creek and tributaries 

Project 17/18- 06: Reintroduction of native fish species in highly 

degraded areas to improve riparian and in-stream habitat 
Project 17/18-07: Review of the Trust's Strategic plan 2013-2018 and its 

methods of service delivery 

Project 17/18 - 08: Bank Stabilisation - Emu Creek- Pettigrew Crossing 

TOTAL 

Page 7of11 

95,395 

20,182 

8,843 

115,999 

4,850 

4,546 

2,000 

20,000 

271,815 

90 

3,438 
3,840 

909 

8,097 
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Note 4 • Member's Fees 

Mr David Brown (Chairperson) 
Mr Ed Kemp (Chairperson) 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Mr Ian Mapes (Community Member) 

TOTAL 

1,769 

1,129 

2,898 

Remuneration will be made in accordance with the current Government policy titled Remuneration 

of Part-Time Chairs and Members of Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities. 

Note s · Supplies and services 

Public llablllty and Professional Indemnity Insurance 
Audit Fees 

Conferences, Seminars and Training 

Secretariat I Treasurer I Bookkeeping Services 

Advertisements/Promotions 

Membership · State Council of River Trusts Queensland 

TOTAL 

Note 6 · Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CBA Cheque Account 

CBA Tenn Deposit #50096647 (Matures 03/01/2019) 
CBA Tenn Deposit #50129891 (Matures 06/10/2018) 

CBA Term Deposit #50096639 (Matures 06/10/2018) 

TOTAL 

2,734 

2,800 

25,000 

729 
1,300 

32,563 

198,516 

121,311 

117,194 

83,766 

520,787 

846 

1,063 

806 

2,715 

2,7S4 

2,800 

1,111 

5,600 

109 
1,200 

13,574 

407,051 

118,476 

114,301 

82,005 

721,833 

cash and cash equivalents Include all cash on hand, cash and cheques receipted at 30 June, deposits held at call 

with financial Institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid Investments with original maturities of three 

months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant 
risk of changes In value. 

Note 7 - Recelvables 

GST credits receivable from the ATO 

TOTAL 

Note 8 · Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 

TOTAL 
2,573 2,734 
2,573 2,734 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 9 · Property, Plant and Equipment 

The committee has reviewed previous works performed by the River Trust. None of these works 

meet the definition of what is an asset. Therefore, no assets are recorded in the statements. 

Note 10 ·Payables 

GST Payable to the ATO 
Other 
TOTAL 

Note 11 · Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

Details of Key Management Personnel 

987 

8 
979 

15,126 

15,126 

The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those Trust positions that had 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust during 2016-17 and 
2017-18. 

P05itlon Po5ltlon ReUlftftdbllltv 
Responsible for presiding over general meetings; 
ensuring smoot h running o f the Trust and liaising 

Chairperson with, advising and attending to the community In 
relation to their concerns associated with river 
Improvement. 

DeoutvChain>erson Steos into the role of Chalroersonwhen necessarv 
Represents the community on the River Trust 

M ember Committee 

Director-General of 
Makes Investigations to d etermine person's 

Department of Natural 
eligibOity for appointment as member of trust. 
Authorises disclosure of a report to third party 

Resources and M ines about membership ellglbllrty. 

KMP Remuneration Polley 

Remuneration for the Trust's KMP is in accordance with the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. The 

chairperson and other members of the Trust are entitled to fees and allowances payments approved by the 
Minister and In accordance with the current Government policy titled Remunerotion of Port-Time Choirs ond 
Members of Government Boards, Committees ond Stotutory Authorities. 
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Remuneration Expenses 

Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

2017-18 

Position 
Total Meeting 

Expenses 
Chairperson 1,560.00 

Deputy Chairperson 1,050.00 
Member(s) . 

2016-17 

Position 
Total Meeting 

Expenses 

Chairperson 975.00 

Deputy Chairperson 300.00 
Member(s) 750.00 

Note 12 - Related Party Disclosures 

Transactions with people/entities related to KMP 

During 2017-18, the Trust allocated $5,000 of its budget to Warwick District Recreational Fish Stocking 

Association Incorporated of which one of the Trust's KMP is the Secretary-Treasurer. 

The allocation formed part of Annual Works Program to reintroduce native fish species in highly degraded 

areas to improve riparian and In-stream habitat 
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Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Notes to the Financial Statement 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE OF WARWICK SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62 (1) (a) 
of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), section 43 of the Financial and Performance 

Management Standard 2009, and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with section 62 
(1) (b) of the Act, we certify that in our opinion: 

a) the prescribed requirements in respect of the establishing and keeping the accounts 
have been complied with in all material respects; and 

b)the financial statements have been drawn up so as to present a true and fair view, in 
accordance with prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the 
Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 2018, 
and of the financial position of the Trust as at the end of that year; and 

c) these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal control and risk 
management processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to 
financial reporting throughout the reporting period. 

MR ED KEMP 
Chairperson 

(Date) 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Warwick Shire River Improvement Trust. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2018, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements Including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management 
certificate. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I 
hav.a also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance witl'l the Code and the 
Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responslbllltles of the Board for t he financial report 

The Board Is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concem basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my 
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with tlhe Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 
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CAIRNS RIVER 

IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 

30 June 2017 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Income from Continuing Operations 

Precept 
Grants and other Contributions 
Other Revenue 
Total Income from Continuing Operations 

Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Administration Expenses 
Employee Expenses 
Supplies and Services 

Depreciation 
Revaluation Decrement 

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Operating Result from Continuing Operations 

Increase (Decrea.se) In asset revaluation surplus 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Notes 

2 
3 
4 

s 
6 
7 

8 
9 

2017 
s 

200,000 
304,560 

7,096 
511,656 

35,777 

221,292 
90,879 

347,948 

163,708 

(9,286) 

154,422 

n~ ac:companying MIU/oTM p<lrl o/IA~ SIOltJNtnlS 

3 

2016 
s 

200.,000 
60,433 

4,473 

264,906 

45,581 

105,521 
224,685 

375,787 

(110,881) 

9,286 

(101,595) 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 30 June 2017 

Notes 2017 2016 
$ $ 

Current Assets 
Cash 10 268,613 

286,342 
Receivaibles II 34,147 

62,839 
Total Current Assets 302,760 349,181 

Non-Current Assets 
Land & Stream Bank Assets 12 5,920,257 

5,715,414 
Tota] Non-Current Assets 5,920,257 5,715,414 

Total Assets 6,223,017 6,064,595 

Current Liabilities 
Payables 13 8,000 

4,000 
Total Current Liabilities 8,000 4,000 

Total Liabilities 8,000 4,000 

Net Assets (Liabilities) 6,215,017 6,060,595 

Equity 
Accumulated Surplus 6,060,595 6,162,190 
Asset Revaluation Surplus 14 (9,286) 9,286 
Profit 163,708 (110,881) 
Total Equity 6,215,017 6,060,595 

The accompati)ling notes form par J of these statements 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Balance at 01 July 2015 
Operating Surplus for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 

Balance as 30 June 2016 

Operating Surplus for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 

Balance as 30 June 2017 

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$ 

6,162,190 
(110,881) 

6,051,309 

163,708 

6,215,017 

5 

Assets 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
$ 

9,286 

9,286 

(9,286) 

Total 

$ 

6,162,190 
(110,881) 

9,286 

6,060,595 

163,708 

(9,286) 

6,215,017 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
inflows: 
User Charges 
Grant and other contributions 

OST input tax credits from ATO 

OST collected from customers 
Other 

Outflows; 
Administration Services 
Employee Expenses 
Supplies and Services 
GST paid to suppliers 
GST remitted to ATO 

Net Cash provided by (used) in Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 

Payments for stream improvement assets 
Net Cash provided (used in) investing activities 

Net increasel(Decrease) in cash held 
Cash as at beginning of year 

Cash as at end of year 

Cash at the end of year is shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position as: 

Cash on Hand 

Cash at Bank 

Notes 

6 

2017 
$ 

53 1,363 

44,116 

32,929 
2,919 

30,368 

55,628 
16,760 

508,571 

526,300 

526,300 

(17,729) 

286,342 

268,613 

268,613 

268,613 

201'i 
$ 

225,718 

14,502 
2,592 
2,602 

55,672 

105,521 
15,871 

2337 
66,013 

66,013 

220,329 

286,342 

286 342 

286,342 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  80 

CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-2017 

Note I 

Note2 

Note3 

Note4 

Notes 

Note6 

Note? 

Note8 

Note9 

Note 10 

Note 11 

Note 12 

Note 13 

Note 14 

Note 15 

Note 16 

Objectives and Principal Activities oftbe Trust 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Precept 

Grants and Other Contributions 

Other Revenue 

Administration Expenses 

Employee Expenses 

Supplies and Services 

Depreciation 

Revaluation Decrement 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables 

Land and Stream Bank Assets 

Payables 

Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-2017 

Note 1: Basis of Financial Statement Preparation 

(a) Genenl Information about the Reporting Entity 

These financial statements cover the Cairns River Improvement Trust. The Trust is constituted under the River 
Improvement Trust Act 1940. The Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements include all 
income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity for the Trust 

(b) Authorisation of Financial Statements for Issue 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chairperson and Secretary at the date of signing the 
Management Certificate. 

(c) Compliance with Prescribed Requirements 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the 
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accruals basis 
in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the Trust applied those 
requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the Trust is a not-for-profit public sector entity. 

(d) Underlying Measurement Basis 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the following: 

Stream Bank Improvement Assets - which are measured at fair value. 

(e) Government Grants, Landholder Contributions and Other Contributions 

Grants and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year which the Trust 
obtains control over them (c-0ntrol is generaUy obtained at the time of receipt or earlier upon unconditional 
entitlement to the funds). Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively 
recognised as it is earned, according to the terms of the funding agreements. 

Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established. 

The Trust also receives contributions of assets from the government and other parties. These assets are 
recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the Statement of Financial Position, with a corresponding 
amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of.Comprehensive Income. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(f) Special Payments 

Special payments include ex gratia expenditure and other expenditure that the Trust is not contractually or 

legally obliged to make to other parties. In compliance with the Financial and Perfonnance Management 
Standard 2009, the Trust maintains a register setting out details of all special payments greater than $5,000. The 

total of all special payments (including those of 5000 or less) is disclosed separately with Other Expenses (Refer 
Note - if applicable). However, descriptions of the nature of special payments are only provided for those 

greater than $5,000. 

(g) C11sh and Cash Eqlllvalents 

Cash and cash equivalent include all cash and cheques receipted at 30 June as well as deposits held at call with 
financial institutions. 

(b) Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed 
purchase/contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known 
bad debts were written-off as at 30 June. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events 

that have occurred. 

(I) Acquisitions of Assets 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as 
the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in 
getting the assets ready for use, including architects' foes and engineering design fees. However, any training 
costs are expensed as incurred. 

Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland public sector entity (usually via an 
involuntary transfer), the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the 
transferor or immediately prior to the transfer together with any accumulated depreciation. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from another 
Queensland government agency, are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordance with 
AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(j) Stream Improvements Works 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following 
thresholds are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Steam Improvement Works $10,000 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(k) Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets 

Stream Improvement Works are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current Asset Policies for the 
Queensland Public Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date 

of valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where applicabk 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued on an annual basis by appraisals undertaken by 

an independent profess.ional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and relevant indices. 
Revaluations based on independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once 
every five years. However, if a class of asset experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value (i.e. 
where indicators suggests that the value of the class of asset may have changed by 20% or more from one 

reporting period to the next), it is subject to such revaluations in the reporting period, where practicable, 
regardless of the timing of previous sue~ method of revaluation. A revaluation of the assets of the Trust was 
undertaken in 2014-2015. 

Materiality concepts under AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, are 
considered in determining whether the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of an asset is 
material (in which case revaluation is warranted). 

The fair values reported by the Trust are based on appropriate valuation teclmiques that maximise the use of 
available and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (refer to Note (I)) 

Where indices are used in the revaluation process, the Trust ensures that the application of such indices would 

result in a valid estimation of the asset's fair value at reporting date. State Valuation Services (SVS) supplied 
the indices and provided assurance of their robustness, validity and appropriateness for application to the 
relevant assets. Indices used are also tested for reasonableness by applying the indices to a sample of assets and 

comparing results to similar assets that have been valued by an independent professional valuer or internal 
expert, and analysing the trend of changes in values over time. At year end, management assesses the relevance 
and suitability of indices provided by SYS based on the Trust's own particular circumstances. 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of 
the appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised 
as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged. as an expense, to the extent it 
exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation ms restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of 

the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

0) Fair Value Measurement 

(i) Recognised fair value measurements 

The Trust measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis. 

Land and Stream Bank Assets 

The Trust does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due 
to their short term nature. 

10 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016·17 

ln accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability. 

Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability. 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable 
data, where it is available and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. In the case of the Trust assets, Land 
and Stream Bank Assets, they are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for similar or identical 
assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

(U) Valuation technique used to value Trust assets comprise: 

Land and Streambank Assets 

All Trust Land and Streambank Assets are valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation 

comprises the asset's current replacement cost less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost 
to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. The Trust first dete.nnines the 

gross cost of replacing the asset and then adjusted to take account the expired service potential of the asset. 

The present cost or replacement cost basis of valuation is considered to be the more relevant for most of the 
Trusts' constructed assets. This is because maintenance done by the Trust tends to restore the value of assets to 
their p resent cost. 

(m) lntanglbles 

The Trust currently holds no intangible assets. 

(n) Depreciation 

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
considerations such as manufacturers' warranties, asset turnover practices and the Trust's strategic asset plan. 

Rc>assessments of useful lives are undertaken a!Ulually by the Trust. Any consequential adj ustments to 
remaining useful life estimates are implemented prospectively. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and 
the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Trust 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the 
asset to which they relate. 

11 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation rates are used (The rate is based on a straight line 
value based on age): 

Adopted Economic Life of Structures/works 
Structure Tvoe Assumed EA:onomic Life (years) 

Levee bank 75 
R<><:kwork - bank protection 50 
Groynes 10 
Stream Training (realil!:nment) 10 
Tree Planting 10 
Stream Clearing 4 

(o) Impairment of Non- Current Assets 

The Trust reviews at each reporting date the carrying amounts of its non-current assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. Such indicators may be either specific to the Trust or 
to the particular asset e.g. Technology changes, or political and economic developments. If an indicator of 
possible impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined and then compared to its carrying 
value. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an 
impairment loss. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the asset's 'fair value less costs to sell' and its 'value in use'. 
Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset's ability to generate 
net cash inflows or if the asset would be replaced if the Trust was deprived of it, value in use is determined as 
the depreciated replacement cost. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset 
against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revalua.tion increase. Refer also Note I (k). 

(p) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 
generally settled on 30 day terms. 

(q) Financial Instruments 

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position when the Trust becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

12 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

Classification 
Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

• Cash and Cash equivalents - held at fair value through profit and loss 
• Receivables - held at amortised cost 
* Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair value. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented on a net basis in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

The Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart 
from cash and cash equivalents, the department holds no financial assets classified at fair value through profit 
and loss. 

(r) Employee Benefits 

Key Management Personnel and Remuneration 

Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section S of the 
Financial Reporting Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury and 
Trade. Refer to Note 15 for the disclosures on key management personnel and remuneration. 

Remuneration of Board Members 
Board Members received remuneration for attending meetings during the year in accordance with Cabinet 
approved procedures for the remuneration of part time chairs and members of govenunent boards, committees 
and statutory authorities. 

(s) Provisions 

The Trust currently has no provision liabilities. 

(t) Insurance 

The Trust has current insurance cover for professional indemnity, public liability and fidelity guarantee, trust 
members and officer' s liability, employment practices liability with LGM Queensland. The Trust pays insurance 
premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. 

(u) Taxation 

The Trust is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act l 936 and is exempted from other 
forms of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are recognised (refer to Notes l 1 and 13). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 0 ffice. Jn these circumstances the GST is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as pan of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the 
Statement of Financial Positioo are shown inclusive of GST. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(v) Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily. requires the determination and use of certain critical 

accounting estimates, assumptions, and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material 
adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, 

judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

Estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on the financial statements are outlined in the 

following Notes: 

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment - Notes I (i) - (1) and Notes 12 and 14; and Depreciation and 
Amortization - Note I (n) and Note 8. 

(w) O ther Pr esentation Matters 

Comparatives 
There has been no restatement of comparative information. 

(x) New and Revised Accounting Standa rds 

The Trust did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2016-2017. In the current year, the 
Trust adopted all of the new and revised Standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The adoption of the 
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to the Trust's accounting 

policies. 

The only Australian Accounting Standard that became effective for the first time in 2016-17 is AASB 124 
Related Party Disclosures. This standard requires note disclosures about Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
renumerated expenses and other related party transactions, and does not impact on financial statement line 
items. As Queensland Treasury already required disclosure of KMP renurneration expenses, AASB 124 itself 
had minimal impact on the Trust disclosures compared to 2015-2016 (refer to Note 15). 

AASB 15 is effective from I January 2018 and will replace AASB 118 revenue, AASB 111 Construction 
Contracts and a number of interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the 

recognition, measurement and disclosure ofrevenue from contracts with customers. The Trust will review the 
way revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether there will be any material impact. To date, no 
material impacts have been identified. 

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is effective for 
reporting periods beginning on or after I January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of 
AASB 9 is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with 
financial assets. Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 
139 will be replaced with two measurement categories, fair value and amortis.ed cost and financial assets will 

only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met. Based on the current 
financial assets of the Trust, there would be no impact on financial statements, however consideration would 

need to be given to any future application. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

2 Precept 
Precept 
Total 

3 G rants and other 
Contributions 
State/Commonwealth Grant Programs 
State Council of River Trusts 
Landholder Contnbutions 

Total 

4 Other Revenue 
Bank Interest 
Sundry Income 

Total 

5 Adminlstradon Expenses 

Accountancy Fees 
Audit Fees 
Banlc Charges 
Conference Costs 
Fees & Permits 
Insurance 

Legal Fees 
Members' fees and expenses 
Subscriptions 

Secretary's and Engineer's Allowance 
Travel Expenses 

Total 

6 Employee Expenses 
Employee Benefits 
Wages & Salaries 
Superannuation 

T otal 

7 Supplies and Services 
Maintenance - Stream Bank Assets 

Total 

15 

2017 
$ 

200,000 
200,000 

94,557 
79,113 

130,890 

304,560 

4,384 
2.712 

7,096 

4,000 
243 
418 

15,642 

1,299 
1,200 

8,655 
4,320 

35, 777 

2016 
$ 

200,000 

54,033 

6,400 

60,433 

3,775 
698 

4,473 

7,900 
277 

11,076 

17,333 

1,000 
6,875 
1,120 

45,581 

105,521 

105,521 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

8 Depreciation 
All Catclunents 

Total 

9 Revaluation Decrement 
All Catclunents 

Total 

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash on Hand 
Deposits at Call 
Total 

11 Receivables 
Trade Debtors 
Sundry Debtors 
Accrued Income 
Prepaid Expenses 
GST Receivable 

Total 

12 Stream Bank lmpr-0vement. Assets 
Stream Bank Improvement Assets: 
At fair value 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Total 

2017 
$ 

221,292 

221,292 

90,879 

90,879 

268,613 

268,613 

11,000 

3,262 
12,682 
7,203 

34,147 

2017 
$ 

12,110,187 
6,189,930 

5,920,257 

2016 
$ 

224,685 

224,685 

286,342 

286,342 

38,186 
1,173 

14,091 

9,389 

62,83!> 

2016 
s 

11,064,619 
5,349,205 

5,~15,414 

Independent valuations of stream bank improvement assets were most recently performed as at 30 June 2015 
by J.T. Smith & Associates Pty Ltd, Consulting Engineers using 'fair value' principles. 

Carrying amount at July 2016 
Acquisitions 
Asset Transfers 
Disposals 
Assets reclassified as held for sale 

Donations made 

16 

Stream 
Bank 

Assets 
2017 

$ 
5,715,414 

526,300 

Total 

2017 
$ 

5,715,414 
526,300 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

Transfers between classes 
Revaluation increments (Note 14) 

Revaluation decrements (Note 9) 
Impairment losses recognised in operating 

surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses reversed in operating 
surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses recognised in equity 
Impairment losses reversed in equity 
Depreciation 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 

13 Paya.bles 

Accrued Expenses 

Total 

14 Asset Revaluation Surplus by CJass: 

Balance 1July 2015 
Revaluation increments 
Revalua.tion decrements 
Impairment losses through equity 
Impairment reversals through equity 
Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2016 

Balance 1 July 2016 
Revaluation increments 
Revaluation decrements 
Impairment losses through equity 
Impairment reversals through equity 
Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2017 

15 Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

(9,286) 

(90,879) 

221,292 

5,920,257 

8,000 

8,000 

Stream 

(9,286) 
(90,879) 

221,292 

5,920,257 

4,000 

4,000 

Bank Total 

Assets 

9,286 9,286 

9,286 9 ,286 

(9,286) (9,286) 

The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those Trust positions that had authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust during 20 16-17 
and 2015-16. 
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Position Position Responsibility 

Chairperson Responsible for presiding over general meetings; 
ensuring smooth running of the Trust and liaising with, 
advising and attending to the community in relation to 
their concerns associated with river improvement. 

Deputy Chairperson Steps into the role of Chairperson when necessary 

Member Represents the community on the River Trust Committee 

KMP Remuneration Policy 

Remuneration for the Trust's KMP is in accordance with the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. The chairperson 
and other members of the Trust are entitled to fees and allowances payments approved by the Minister and in 
accordance with the current Government policy titled Remuneration of Part-Time Chairs and Members of 
Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities. 

Remuneration Expenses 

Chairperson 
Members 
Total 

16 Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
None Occurring 

18 

2017 
$ 

585 

585 

2016 
$ 

585 

585 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

These general PlllJlOSC f?ncial statements ~ been prepmcd pursuant to s. 62(1) {a) or the Fint111da/ 
ACC01111tabilily Act 2009 {!he Act), s 43 of the Flnm1clal and Pw[ornumcs Managmiet11 Sla11dard 2009 me! 
other prescribed requirements. In accordance with s.62 (I) (b) of the Act we certify that in our opjoion: 

(i) The prescribed requirements fur establishing and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all 
material r~; and · 

(ii) The finaocial statements have been drawn' up so :es to present a true and tilir view, in acoordm:e with 
prescribed. a~untfug ~udaids,· of the transactions. of the Trust for the finaoolal year June 2017 and of the 
financial position of the Tl'ustas at the end of that :year. 

{iii) Tiiese assertions arc based on an appropriate system of Internal controJs and risk management processes 
being effective, in all material respects, with respect to financlal reporting throughout the reporting period. 

c --< \ 
(~~ 

. 
Date 

' . 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Cairns River Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Cairns River Improvement Trust. 

In my opinion the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and its 
financial perfonnance and its cash flows for the year then endedl 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management 
certificate. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, 
the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the Board 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material missta1ement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my 
opinion. I base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For tbe year ended 30 June 2016 

Income from Continuing Operations 

Grants and other Contributions 
Other Revenue 
Total Income from Continuing Operations 

Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Employee Expenses 
Supplies and Services 
Depreciation 
Revaluation Decrement 

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Operating Result from Continuing Operations 

Increase (Decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 

Total Comprehensive Income 

711~ a~ompanyihg 1101~.sfonn {JQN o/ll•t'St s1a1r1nenu 

3 

Notes 

2 
3 

4 

s 
6 
7 

2016 
$ 

260,433 

4,473 

264,906 

151,102 
224,685 

375,787 

(110,881) 

9,286 

pot1595l 

2015 
$ 

484,544 

484,544 

57,379 
250,654 
233,645 

541,678 

(57,134) 

(1,045,589) 

{1,102, 7231 
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Current Assets 
Cash 
Receivables 
Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Land & Stream Bank Assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Payables 
Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets (Liabilities) 

Equity 
Accumulated Surplus 

Asset revaluation Surplus 

Profit 

Total Equity 

CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 30 June 2016 

Notes 2016 2015 

s s 

8 286,342 220,329 

9 62,839 11,048 
349,181 231,377 

10 5,715,414 5,930,813 

5 ,715,414 5,930,813 

6,064,595 6,162,190 

12 4,000 

13 

4,000 

6,060,595 6,162,190 

6 ,162,190 6,219,324 

9,286 
( 110,881) (57,134) 

6,060,595 6,162,190 
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Balance at 01 July 2014 
Operating Surplus for the Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

Accumulated Assets 
Surplus Revaluation 

Surplus 
$ $ 

6,219,324 1,045,589 
(57,134) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus ( 1,045 ,589) 

Balance as 30 June 2015 6,162,190 

Operating Surplus for the Year (110,881} 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Increase/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 9,286 

Balance as 30 June 2016 6,051,309 9,286 

5 

Total 

$ 

7,264,913 
(57, 134) 

(1,045,589) 

6,162,190 

(110,881) 

9,286 

6,060,595 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Inflows: 
User Charges 
Grant and other contributions 
GST input tax credits from A TO 
GST collected from customers 
Other 

Outflows; 
Employee Expenses 
Supplies and services 
GST paid to suppliers 
GST remitted to ATO 
Other 

Net Cash provided by (used) in Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTMTES 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 
Payments for stream improvement assets 

Net Cash provided (used in) investing activities 

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash held 

Cash as at beginning of year 

Cash as at end of year 

Cash at the end of year is shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position as: 

Cash on Hand 

Cash at Bank 

Notes 

6 

2016 
$ 

225,718 
14,502 
2,592 
2,602 

161,193 
15,871 
2,337 

66,013 

66,013 
220,329 

286,342 

286,342 

286,342 

2015 
$ 

484,544 
2,757 

28,454 

58,391 
41,240 

I 

416,123 

368,146 

368,146 

47,977 
172,352 

220,329 

220,329 

220,329 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-2016 

Note 1 

Note2 

Note3 

ote4 

Notes 

Note6 

Note 7 

Note8 

Note9 

ote 10 

ote 11 

Note 12 

Note 13 

Note 14 

Note 15 

Objectives and Principal Activities of the Trust 

Summary of Significaot Accounting Policies 

Grants and Other Contributions 

Other Revenue 

Employee Expenses 

Supplies and Services 

Depreciation 

Revaluation Decrement 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables 

Land and Stream Bank Assets 

Payables 

Other Current Liabilities 

Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class 

Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 

Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements for the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 have been prepared in compliance with the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accruals basis 
in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the Trust applied those 
requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the Trust is a not-for-profit public sector entity. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the following: 

Sllream Bank Improvement Assets - which are measured at fair value. 

(b) Statement of Compliance 

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to the Trust's operations and effective for 
the current reporting period. 

(c) Tile Reporting Entity 

The Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements include the value of all revenue, expenses, 
assets, liabilities and equity for the Trust as an individual entity. 

(d) Government Grants, Landholder CDntributions and Other Contributions 

Grants and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year which the Trust 
obtains control over them (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt or earlier upon unconditional 
entitlement to the funds). Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively 
recognised as it is earned, according to the terms of the funding agreements. 

Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established. 

The Trust also receives contributions of assets from the government and other parties. These assets are 
recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the Statement of Financial Position, with a corresponding 
amount ofrevenue recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(e) Special Payments 

Special payments include ex gratia expenditure and other expenditure that tlie Trust is not contractually or 
legally obliged to make to other parties. Jn compliance with the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009, the Trust maintains a register setting out details of all special payments greater than $5,000. The 
total of all special payments (including those of 5000 or less) is disclosed separately with Other Expenses (Note 
09). However, descriptions of the nature of special payments are only provided for those greater than $5,000. 

8 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  105 

CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015·16 

( I) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent include all cash and cheques receipted at 30 June as well as deposits held at call with 
financial institutions. 

(g) Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed 
purchase/contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known 
bad debts were written-off as at 30 June.. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events 
that have occurred. 

(h) Acquisitions of Assets 

Acrual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as 
the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in 
getting the assets ready for use, including architects' fees and engineering design fees. However, any training 
costs :are expensed as incurred. 

Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland public sector entity (usually via an 
involuntary transfer), the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the 
transferor or immediately prior to the transfer together with any accumulated depreciation. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from another 
Queensland government agency, are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordance with 

AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(l) Stream Improvements Works 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following 
thresholds are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Steam Improvement Works $10,000 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

{j) Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets 

Stream Improvement Works are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current Asset Policies for the 

Queensland Public Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date 
of valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where applicable. 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued on an annual basis by appraisals undertaken by 

an independent professional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and relevant indices. 

Reval.uations based on independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once 

every five years. However, if a class of asset experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value (i.e. 

where indicators suggests that the value of the class of asset may have changed by 20% or more from one 
reporting period to the next), it is subject to such revaluations in the reporting period, where practicable, 

regardless of the timing of previous such method of revaluation. A revaluation of the assets of the Trust was 

undertaken in 2014-2015. 

Materiality concepts under AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, are 

considered in determining whether the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of an asset is 
material (in which case revaluation is warranted). 

The fair values reported by the Trust are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
available and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (refer to Note (k)) 

Where indices are used in the revaluation process, the Trust ensures that the application of such indices would 

result in a valid estimation of the asset's filir value at reporting date. State Valuation Services (SVS) supplied 

the indices and provided assurance of their robusbless, validity and appropriateness for application to the 

relevant assets. Indices used are also tested for reasonableness by applying the indices to a sample of assets and 

comparing results to similar assets that have been valued by an independent professional valuer or internal 

expert, and analysing the trend of changes in values over time. At year end, management assesses the relevance 
and suitability of indices provided by SYS based on the Trust's own particular circumstances. 

Any revaluation increment arising· on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of 

the appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised 

as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is cha.rged as an expense, to the extent it 

exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of 

the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

(k) Fair Va lue Measur ement 

(I) R ecognised fair value measurements 

The Trust measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis. 

Land and Stream Bank Assets 

The Trust does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due 

to their short term nature. 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly Obseniable for the asset or liability. 

Fair value based on 1lllobservable inputs for the asset and liability. 

10 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201S-16 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable 
data, where it is available and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. In the case of the Trust assets, Land 
and Stream Bank Assets, they are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for similar or identical 
assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

(U} Valuation technique used to value Trust assets comprise: 

Land and Streambank Assets 

All Trust Land and Streambank Assets are valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation 
comprises the asset's current replacement cost less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost 
to refl.ect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. The Trust first determines the 

gross cost of replacing the asset and then adjusted to take account the expired service potential of the asset. 

The present cost or replacement cost basis of valuation is considered to be the more relevant for most of the 
Trusts' constructed assets. This is because maintenance done by the Trust tends to restore the value of assets to 

their present cost. 

(I) Intangibles 

The Trust currently holds no intangil>le assets. 

(m) Depreciation 

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
considerations such as manufacturers' warranties, asset turnover practices and the Trust's strategic asset plan. 
Re-assessments of useful lives are undertaken annually by the Trust. Any consequential adjustments to 
remaining useful life estimates are implemented prospectively. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 

are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potent ial of an asset is capitalised and 

the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Trust. 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the 
asset to which they relate. 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation rates are used: 
The rate is based on a straight line value based on age: 

Adootcd Economic Life of Structures/works 
Structure Tyoe Assumed E<:onomk Life h ·earsl 

Levee Bank 15 
Rockwork - bank protection so 
Groynes 10 
Stream Trainin2 <reali211menO 10 
Tree Plantin2 10 
Stream Clearin2 4 

11 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

(n) Jmpairment of Non-Current Assets 

The Trust reviews at each reporting date the carrying amounts of its non-cu1Tent assets to detennine whether 

there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. Such indicators may be either specific to the Trust or 

to the ·particular asset e.g. Technology changes, or political and economic developments. If an indicator of 

possible impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is de1ermined and then compared to its carrying 
value. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an 

impairment loss. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the asset's 'fair value less costs to sell' and its 'value in use'. 

Where the future economic benefits of the asset arc not primarily dependent upon the asset's ability to generate 
net cash inflows or if the asset would be replaced if the Trust was deprived of it, value in use is determined as 

the depreciated replacement cost. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the ·Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset 

against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 

reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. Refer also Note I (k). 

(o) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed 

purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 

generally settled on 30 day terms. 

(p) F inancial Instruments 

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position when the Trust becomes party to 

the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Classi fication 
Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

• Cash and Cash equivalents - held at fair value through profit and loss 

• Receivables - held at amortised cost 

• Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair value. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented on a net basis in the Statement of 

Financial Position. 

The Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart 

from cash and cash equivalents, the department holds no financial assets classified at fair value through profit 

and loss. 
12 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

(q) E mployee Benefits 

Note 04 indicates employee expenses of $0 

Key Management Personnel and Remuneration 
Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section 5 of the 

Financial Reporting Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury and 
Trade. Refer to Note 4 for the disclosures on key management personnel and remuneration. 

Remuneration of Board Members 
Board Members received remuneration for attending meetings during the year in accordance with Cabinet 

approved procedures for the remuneration of part time chairs and members of government boards, committees 
and statutory authorities. 

(r) Provisions 

The Trust currently has no provision liabilities. 

(s) Ins urance 

The Trust has current insurance cover for professional indemnity, public liability and fidelity guarantee, trust 
members and officer's liability, employment practices liability with LGM Queensland. The Trust pays insurance 
premiums 10 Workcover Queensland in TC$pect of its obligations for employee compensation. 

(t) Ta.xatlon 

The Trust is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempted from other 
forms of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are recognised (refer to Note 12). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised 

as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the 
Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 

(u) Issuance of Financial Statements 

T he financial statements are authorised for issue by the Secretary at the date of signing the Management 

Certificate. 

(v) Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical 
accounting estimates, assumptions, and management judgemenls lhat have the potential to cause a material 
adjustmenl to carrying amounts of assets and liabili1ies within the next financial year. Such estimates, 
judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

13 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015·16 

Estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on the financial statements are outlined in the 
following Notes: 

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment ·Notes 1 (h) - (k) and Notes 10 and 13; and Depreciation and 

Amortization· Note I (m) and Note 6. 

(w) Comparatives 

There has been no restatement of comparative information. 

(x) New and Revised Accounting Standards 

The Trust did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2015-2016. In the current year, the 
Trust adopted all of the new and revised Standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The adoption of the 

new and revised Standards and Interpretati-0ns has not resulted in any material changes to the Trust's ace-0unting 
policies. 

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 
101 [AASB7, AASB 101, AASB 134 & AASB 1049] has been early adopted by the Trust for 2015-2016. 

This Standard amends the above Standards and seeks to improve financial reporting by providing flexibility as 

to the ordering of notes, the identification and location of significant accounting policies, the p·resentation of 

sub-totals and clarity on aggregating line items. It also emphasises only including material disclosures in the 
notes. The Trust has applied this flexibility in preparing the 2015-2016 financial statements and co-located 
significant accounting policies with the breakdown of financial information disc.Josed in each note. 

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is effective for 
reporting periods beginning on or after I January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of 
AASB 9 is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with 
financial assets. Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 
139 will be replaced with two measurement categories, fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will 
only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met. Based on the current 

financial assets of the Trust, there would be no impact on financial statements, however consideration would 
need to be given to any future application. 

AASB 15 is effective from 1 January 2017 and will replace AASB 118 revenue, AASB 111 Construction 
Contracts and a number of interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the 
recogllition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers. The Trust will review the 
way revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether there will be any material impact. To date, no 
material impacts have been identified. 

From I July 2016, AASB Related Party Disclosures will apply to the Trust. This means that the Trust will 
disclose more information about related parties and transactions with those related parties. The Trust is 
preparing for this change by identifying related parties to the Trust. 

14 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

2 Grants and other Contributions 

State'Commonwealth Grant Programs 
Contributions 
Precept 

Total 

3 Other Revenue 
Bank Interest 
Sundry Income 

Total 

4 Employee E xpenses 

2016 
$ 

54,033 
6,400 

200,000 

260,433 

3,775 

698 

4,473 

2015 

s 

170,995 
113,549 
200,000 

484,544 

The number of employees both full-time and part-time employees measured on a full-time equivalent basis is:
Key Management Personnel 
The following details for key management personnel include those positions that had authority 

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust during 2015-2016 

Position and responsibilities 

Secretary - Responsible for 
management of the affairs of the Trust 

Remuneration 

Current Incumbent 
Contract appointment authority 

Section 6(1) River Improvement 
Trust Act 1940 

Date appointed 

to position 

02/07/2008 

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Trust's Secretary are set by resolution of the trust in its 

adoption of the Trust budget each year. 

· Total remuneration for key management personnel comprises the following components: 

• Short-term employee benefits - comprising base salary, allowances and superannuation benefits paid and 
provided for the entire year or for that part of the year during which the 

1 July 2015-30 June 2016 

Position Short-term Long-term Post- Termination Total 
Employee Employee Employment Benefits Remuneration 
Benefits Benefits Benefits 

Chairman $585 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

I July 2014-30 June 2015 

Position Short-term Long-term Post- Termination Total 
E mployee Employee E mployment Benefits Remuneration 
Benefits Benefits Benefits 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015·16 

5 Supplies & Services 
Accountancy Fees 
Audit Fees 
Bank Charges 
Conference Costs 
Fees & Pennits 
Enginee:ring Inspection cost 
Insurance 
Maintenance- Stream Bank Assets 
Members' fees and expenses 
Legal Fees 
Subscriptions 
Secretary's and Engineer's: Allowance 
Travel Expenses 
Total 

6 Depreciation 
All Catchments 
Total 

7 Revaluation Decrement 
All Catchments 
Total 

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash on Hand 
Deposits at Call 
Total 

9 Receivables 
Sundry Debtors 
Accrued Income 
Prepaid Expenses 
GST Receivable 
Total 

16 

2016 2015 
$ s 

2,200 
7,900 

277 267 
11 ,076 487 

2,601 
21,855 

17,333 19,242 
105,521 

1,648 
1,093 

1,000 1,409 
6,875 6,577 
1,120 

151,102 57,379 

224,685 250,654 
224,685 250,654 

233,645 
233,645 

286,342 220,329 
286,342 220,329 

38,186 
1,173 

14,091 
9,389 11,048 

62,839 11,048 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

10 Stream Bank Improvement Assets 
Stream Bank Improvement Assets: 
At fair value 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Total 

2016 
$ 

11,064,619 
5,349,205 

5,715,414 

2015 
$ 
11,234,257 
5,303,444 

5,930,813 

Independent valuations of stream bank improvement assets were most recently performed as at 30 June 2015 
by J.T. Smith & Associates Pty Ltd, Consulting Engineers using 'fair value' principles. 

Carrying amount at July 2015 
Acquisitions 
Asset Transfers 

Disposals 
Assets reclassified as held for sale 
Donations made 
Transfers between classes 

Revaluation increments (Note 13) 
Revaluation decrements (Note 7) 
Impairment losses recognised in operating 
surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses reversed in operating 
surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses recognised in equity 
Impairment losses reversed in equity 
Depreciation 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2016 

11 Payables 
Accrued Expenses 

Total 

17 

Stream 

Bank 
Assets 
2016 

$ 
5,930,813 

9,286 

224,685 

S,715,414 

4,000 

4,000 

Total 

2016 
$ 
5,930,813 

9,286 

224,685 

5,715,414 
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CAIRNS RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16 

12 Other Current Liabilities 
Unearned Revenue 

Total 

13 Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class: 

Balance 1 July 2014 
Revaluation increments 
Revaluation decrements 
Impairment losses through equity 
Impairment reversals through equity 
Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2015 

Balance 1 July 2015 
Revaluation increments 
Revaluation decrements 

Impairment losses through equity 
Impairment reversals through equity 
Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2016 

14 Non-Cash f'inancing and Investing Activities 

Stream 
Bank Total 
Assets 
1,045,589 1,045,589 

1,045,589 1,045,589 

9,286 9,286 

9,286 9,286 

Assets or liabilities received or donated/transferred by the Trust and recognised as revenues and expenses set 
out in Notes 2 and 8 respectively. 

15 Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
None Occurring 

18 
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Cl:R.TIJ!ICATE OF CAIRNS RMB. JMPRO\'BMOO' TRUST 

These general J>Ull)Ose finlnciaJ statements have been prepared pursuant to s. 62(1) (a) of the Ffnanclal 
Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), s 43 of the Finandal and Performance Management Standard 2009 and 
other prescribed requirements. In accordance with s.62 (I) (b) of the Act we catify that in our opiui<>n: 

(i} Tbo prescnbcd requirements for establishing and lcecp ing of accounts have been complied with in all 
material respects; and 

(ii) The financial sta1Cinci;its have Q<:en drawn up so as to present a true ao4 fair view, in accordance with 
prescnbed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Trust for the financial year June 2016 end of the 
fmanciel position of the Trust as at the end of that year. 

'··~ 
RobLait 
Chailperson 

Date 

19 

.•........ ~.~~.~~ 
Tim Smith 
Secretary 

........ fuJ.1 . .f.J-···········-·· 
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• Queensland 
• • Audit Office 

Betterpublicse~ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Cairns River Improvement Trust 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Cairns River Improvement Trust. which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and certificates given by the Chairperson and Secretary. 

The Board's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, 
including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. The Board's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Board 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The 
audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require 
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the 
audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control, other than in expressing an opinion on compljance with prescribed 
requirements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report including any mandatory financial 
reporting requirements approved by the Treasurer for application in Queensland. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtaiped is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my qualified audit opinion. 
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Appendix C: Correction to 2016–17 financial statements and 
audit reports 

2016-17 financial statements of entities audited after tabling of last year’s summary report  

Audited financial statements are provided over page for those trusts whose 2016–17 financial 

statements were either not audited prior to the publishing the 2016–17 Summary of Annual Reports 

and Financial Statements, or have been corrected since that date: 

 2016–17: Burdekin River Improvement Trust 

 2016–17 Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust 

 2016–17: Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

 2016–17: Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust. 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement 
Trust 
70 496 765 623 

Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 496 785 823 
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Burdekln Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 , 11716623 

Income Statement 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

2017 2016 
Note s s 

Revenue 3 219,$97 142,374 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 (4'5,228) (42,257) 
Other expenses 4 (125,649) (78,507) 
Finance costs (15) 

Operating Result for the 119ar 4'9,005 21,610 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive Income for the year 49,005 21,610 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70•967~623 

Balance Sheet 
As At 30 June 2017 

2017 2016 
Note s $ 

ASSETS 
CURR1ENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,251,517 1,149,308 
Trade and other receivables 6 2,061 2,868 
Other assets 7,268 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,253,578 1,159,444 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 7 3,829,480 3,874,708 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,829,480 3,874,708 
TOTAL ASSETS 510831058 510341152 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 8 4,900 5,000 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,900 5,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4900 5,000 
NET ASSETS 5,078,158 5,029,152 

EQUITY 
Reserves 1,732,804 1,732,804 
Retained Earnings 3,345,354 3,296,348 

TOTAL EQUITY 5,078,158 5,029,152 

The accompanying notes form part of t lhese financial statements. 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 70 496 765 623 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

2017 

Balance at 1 July 2016 
Surplus for the year 

Balance at 30 June 2017 

2016 

Balance at 1 July 2015 
Surplus for the year 
Revaluation increment (decrement) 

Balance at 30 June 2016 

Retained 
Earnings 

s 
3,296,348 

49,006 

3,345,354 

Retained 
Eamings 

$ 

3,274,738 
21,610 

3,296,348 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

Asset 
Realiaatlon 

Reserve Total 
s $ 

1,732,804 5,029,152 
49,006 

1,732,804 5,078,158 

Asset 
Realisation 

Reserve Total 
$ s 

1,516,933 4,791,671 
21,610 

215,871 215,871 

1,732,804 5,029.152 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

10 '96 76!1623 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts from Customers 

Payments to Suppliers 

Interest Received 

Net cash provided by/(used In) operating actJvities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 

Note 

11 

5 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

2017 

$ 

199,714 
(118,496) 

20,990 

102,208 

102,208 

1,149,308 

1,251,516 

2016 

$ 

118,744 

(87,827) 

22.114 

53,031 

53,031 

1,096,277 

1,149,308 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

The financial statements cover Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust as an Individual entity. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date of signing the management certificate of the Trust. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

Baal• of Preparation 

The financia.I statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Aocountablllty Act 2009 and the 
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared on an aCCNal basis In aocordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards ·Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Australian Interpretations. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the Trust has applied those 
requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the Trust is a not-for-profrt public sector entity. Except where stated, 
the historical cost convention is used. All announts throughout the financial statements are in Australian dollars. 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(•) Income Tax 

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from Income tax under Div 50 of the Income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Revenue and other Income 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received. Grant and donation income is recognised 
when the trust obtains control over the funds. which Is generally at the time of recelpt. If conditions are attached 
to the grant that must be satisfied before the trust is eligible to receive the con1ributlon, recognition of the grant 
as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. 

Interest Is recognised using the effective interest method. 

All revenue is slated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

(c) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables 
and payable are stated inciusive of GST. The net amount. of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 1he ATO is 
Included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

5 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  126 

Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 496 765 623 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(d) Property, plant and equipment 

River improvement works assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value in accordance with MSB 
116 Property, Plant and Equipment. MSB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current 
Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector. The trust uses engineers to assess the condition and cost 
assumptions associated with all stream Improvement works assets, the results of which are considered in 
combination with any relevant indices. This process involves sighting a representative sample of stream 
improvement works assets and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of 
inspeciion. River improvement works assets were comprehensively revalued for the year ended 30 June 2014 
and an indexation valuation applied at 30 June 2016. 

A $5,000 asset recognition threshold has been applied for the recognition of assets. All items meeting the 
threshold have been recognised at their respective fair values. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or re<:ognised as a separate asset. as appropriate. 
only when it is probable that Mure economic benefi1s associated with the item will flow to the trust and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in the 
statement of profit or loss in the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets but excluding 
freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the Trust, commencing when 
the asset Is reaciy for use. 

The depreciation rates used for each dass of depreciable asset are shown below: 
Fixed asset class · Depreciation rate 

Plant and Equipment 1% 

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term 
investments highly l iquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

(f) Trade and Other Payables 

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the trust that remain unpaid 
at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid 
within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 
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Burdekln Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 486 765 623 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

3 Revenue and Other Income 

- Interest received 

- Grants 

-AGM Income 

- Precept Payments 

Total Revenue 

4 Other Expenses 

- Accounting fees 

- Auditors remuneration 

- Secretary Expenses 

- Insurance 

- Member expenses 

- AGM expenses 

- Rivers maintenance 

- Sundry expenses 

- Communication & IT 

Total expenses 

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash at bank 

Cash at bank - CMC 

2017 

$ 

20,990 
9,789 

9,118 
180,000 

219,897 

4,984 
4,800 

25,605 
7,718 
5,213 

11,156 
53,852 

3,151 
9,168 

125,647 

5,410 
1,246,107 

112s11511 

2016 
$ 

22,114 

260 

120.000 

142,374 

139 
3,000 

18,472 
10,946 

8,050 

3,372 

25,096 
761 

8,672 

78,508 

3,191 
1,146,117 

1,149,308 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 ~ff 766 62i 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

6 Trade and Other Receivables 

CURRENT 
GST receivable 

7 Property, plant and equipment 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

River Improvements 
At fair value 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total river improvements 

Total property, plant and equipment 

2017 2016 

$ $ 

2,061 2,868 

2.~1 2,868 

4,469,562 4,469,562 
(640,082) (594,854) 

3,829,480 3,874,708 

3,829,480 3,874,708 

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end 
of the current financial year: 

Year ended 30 June 2017 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Depreciation Expense 

Balance at the end of the year 

Year ended 30 June 2016 
Balance at the beginning of year 

Depreciation Expense 

Revanuation increments 

Balance at the end of the year 

Plant and 
Equipment 

$ 

3,874,708 
(45,228) 

3,829,480 

Plant and 
Equipment 

$ 

3,701,094 
(42,257) 
215,871 

3,874,708 

Total 

$ 

3,874,708 
(45,228) 

3,829.480 

Total 

s 

3,701,094 
(42,257) 
215,871 

3,874,708 
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Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 496 76$ 623 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

8 Trade and other payables 

2017 2016 

$ $ 

CURRENT 
Accrued expenses 4,900 5,000 

4,900 5,000 

9 Asset revaluatl on reserve 

The asset revaluatiOn reserve reoords fair value movemen1S on property. plant <md equipment held under the revaluation 
model. 

10 Related Parties 

The main related parties of the Trust are Key Management Personnel. The compensation paid to Key Management 
Personnel were in relation to mileage and meeting fees associated with being a Director. The total amount of 
compensation paid amounted to $2,863 and Is classified as a short term payment. 

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and enttties that are controlled or 
significantiy influenced by those key management personnel or their close fami ly members. During the financial year, 
the Trust transacted with a related party, Ryellen Heliwork, which is controlled by a Director of the Trust. The services 
provided were as below: 

Aerial services incurred to inspect assets with the Queensland Audit Office representative in a helicopter - $1,403. 

Burdekln River spraying, dozer tree removal and roller use In December 2016 to January 2017 - $17,377. This 
maintenance is contracted to the Burdekin Shire Council, who have their own Internal procedures within the 
Procurement team to engage contractors. 

11 Cash Flow Information 

(a) Reconciliation of cash 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash 
flows is reconciled to Items in the balance sheet as follows: 

2017 2016 

$ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,251,517 1,149,308 
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Burdekln Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70 •116 765 823 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

11 Cash Flow lnfonnatlon 

(b) Reconciliation of result for tne year to cashflows from operating activities 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Surplus for the year 

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities 

Non-cash flows in profit 

- depreciation 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

- decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 

- decrease/(lncrease) In prepayments 
- (decrease)/lncrease in trade and other payables 

Cashflows from operations 

12 Company Details 

The registered office of and principal place of business of the company is: 

Old Courthouse 

134-136 Eighth Avenue 

HOME HILL QLD 4806 

2017 2016 

$ $ 
49,006 21 ,610 

45,228 42,257 

807 (1,517) 

7,268 3,1 81 

(100) (12,500) 

102,209 53,031 

10 
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Burdekln Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

70•M765623 

Trustees' Declaration 

The Trustees declare that general purpose financial reporthas been prepared in accordance with section 62(1 )(a) of the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), section 43 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and 
other prescribed requirements. 

In accordance with section 62(1)(b) of the Act, the directors of the trust declare that: 

1. The presclibed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with In all material 
respects; and 

2. the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed accounting 
standards, of the transactions of the Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust (the Trust) for the financial year ended 
30 June 2017 and or the financial position of the Trust as at the end of that year, and 

3. these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management processes being 
effective, in all material respects. with respect to financial reporting throughout the reporting period. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Trustees. 

1J /I A/ - f-.-..._ __ 
Chairperson .................. ~ .............................................. .............................. . 

William Huston 

Dated this ... ../o/.:!. ... ........ . day of . .A!.C..t!..S."C. .. ... 2017 

11 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Burdekin Shire Rivers Improvement Trust. 

In my opinion the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2017, the income statement, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the 
financial statements including summaries of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the management certificate. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my 
report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of Queensland 
Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. 

Responsibllities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
accordance with prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

The Board is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease operations. 
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Zl 

Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust 
Financial Statements 2016-2017 

Contents 
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The River Improvement Trust is a Statutory Body established under the Rivers Improvement Act 1940. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 30 June :2017 

Income from Continuing Operations 

Precept 
Grants 
Other Revenue 
Total Income from Continuing Operations 

Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Administration Expenses 
Employee Expenses 
Supplies and Services 

Depreciation 
Revaluation Decrement 
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Operating Result from Continuing Operations 

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 

Notes 

2 

3 
4 

5 
6 
7 

8 
9 

:2017 

$ 

100,000 

304,251 

2,796 

407,047 

45,508 

39,759 

21,500 
277,217 

383,984 

23,063 

23,063 

Tht acccmpanylng notes form part of 11tese state.menu 

:2016 
$ 

100,000 

182,320 

6,718 

289,.038 

42,920 
38,441 

265,673 

347,034 

(57,996) 

(57,996) 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 30 June 2017 

Notes 2017 2016 

$ $ 

Current Assets 
Cash 10 109,572 151,302 
Receivables 11 180 

Total Current Assets 109,572 151,482 

Non-Current Assets 
Land & Stream Bank Assets 12 7,976,615 7,749,558 

Total Non-Current Assets 7,976,615 7,749,558 

Total Assets 8,086,187 7,901,040 

Current Liabilities 
Payables 13 13,314 1,950 

Tomi Current Liabilities 13,314 1,950 

Total LiabiUties 13,314 1,950 

Net Assets (Liabilities) 8,072,873 7,899,090 

Equity 
Accumulated Surplus 7,754,911 7,812,907 
Asset revaluation Surplus 14 294,899 144,179 
Profit 23,063 (57,996) 

Total Equity 8,072,873 7,899,090 

Tht accompa11y;rig 1101aform par1 of these sta1emtnlS 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Accumulated Assets 
Surplus Revaluation 

Surplus 
s $ 

Balance at 01 July 2015 7,812,907 144,179 
Operating Surplus for the Year (57,996) 
Other Comprehensive Income 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 

Balance as 30 June 2016 7,754,91 1 144,179 

Operating Surplus for the Year 23,063 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Increase/(Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 150,720 

Balance as 30 June 2017 7,777,974 294,899 

Total 

s 
7,957,086 

(57,996) 

7,899,090 

23,063 

150,720 

8,072,873 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Inflows: 
Grant and other contributions 
GST input tax credits from ATO 
GST collected from customers 
Other 

Outflows; 
Administration Expenses 
Employee Expenses 
Supplies and services 
GST paid to suppliers 
GST remitted to ATO 
Other 

Net Cash provided by (used) ln Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 
Payments for stream improvement assets 

Net Cash provided (used in) investing activities 

Net increasel(Decrease) in cash held 
Cash as at beginning of year 

Cash as at end of year 

Cash at the end of year is shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position as: 

Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 

Notes 2017 
$ 

404,251 
33,391 
30,426 
2,796 

45,508 
39,511 
21,500 
41,599 
10,922 

311,824 

353,554 
353,554 

(41,730) 
151,302 
109,572 

109,572 
109,572 

2016 
$ 

282,320 
28,581 
18,233 
6,718 

38,591 
42,920 
23,024 
22,080 

209,237 

198,470 
198,470 

10,767 
140,535 
151,302 

151,302 
151,302 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-2017 

Note 1 

Note2 

Note3 

Note4 

Note5 

Note6 

Note7 

Note8 

Note9 

Note 10 

Note II 

Note 12 

Note 13 

Note 14 

Note 15 

Note 16 

Objectives and Principal Activiities of the Trust 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Precept 

Grants 

Other Revenue 

Administration Expenses 

Employee Expenses 

Supplies and Services 

Depreciation 

Revaluation Decrement 

·Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables 

Stream Banlc Improvement Assets 

Payables 

Movement in Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

Note 1: Basis of Fina ncial Statement Preparation 

(a) General Information about the Reporting Entity 

These financial statements cover the Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust. The Trust is constituted under 
the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. The Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements 
include all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity for the Trust. 

(b) A111thorisatlon of Financial Statements for Issue 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chairperson and Secretary at the date of signing the 

Management Certificate. 

(c) Compliance with Prescribed Requirements 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the 
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2()()9. 

These financial statements are general pUIJ>OSe financial statements and have been prepared on an accruals basis 
in accordance with au Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accoun ting Interpretations and other 
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the Trust applied those 

requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the Trust is a not-for-profit public sector entity. 

(d) Underlying Measurement Basis 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the following: 

Stream Bank Improvement Assets - which are measured at fair value. 

(e) Governmen t Grants, Landholder Contributions and Other Contributions 

Grants and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year which the Trust 
obtains control over them (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt or earlier upon unconditional 
entitlement to the funds). Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively 
recognised as it is earned, according to the terms of the funding agreements. 

Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established. 

The Trust also receives contributions of assets from the government and other parties. These assets are 

recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the Statement of Financial Position, with a corresponding 
amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  141 

28 

CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(f) Special Pay ments 

Specia 1 payments include ex gratia expenditure and other expenditure that the Trust is not contractually or 
legally obliged to make to other parties. In compliance with the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009, the Trust maintains a register setting out details of all special payments greater than $5,000. The 

total of all special payments (including thos:e of 5000 or less) is disclosed separately with Other Expenses (Note 
09). However, descriptions of the nature of special payments are only provided for those greater than $5,000. 

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent include all cash and cheques receipted at 30 June as well as deposits held at call with 
financial institutions. 

(h) Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed 

purchase/contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

The coUectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known 
bad debts were written-off as at 30 June. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events 
that have occurred. 

(I) Acquisitions o f Assets 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as 

the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in 
getting the assets ready for use, including architects' fees and engineering design fees. However, any training 
costs are expensed as incurred. 

Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland public sector entity (usually via an 
involuntary transfer), the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the 
transferor or immediately prior to the transfer together with any accumulated depreciation. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from another 

Queensland government agency, are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordance with 
AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 

0) Stream Improvements Works 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following 
thresholds are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Steam Improvement Works $10,000 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(k) Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets 

Stream Improvement Works are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current Asset Policies for the 
Queensland Public Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date 
of valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where applicable. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued on an annual basis by appraisals undertaken by 
an independent professional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and relevant indices. 
Revaluations based on independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once 
every five years. However, if a class of asset experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value (i.e. 
where indicators suggests that the value of the class of asset may have changed by 20% or more from one 
reporting period to the next), it is subject to such revaluations in the reporting period, where practicable, 
regardless of the timing of previous such method of revaluation. A revaluation of the assets of the Trust was 
undertaken in 2014-2015. 

Materiality concepts under AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, are 
considered in determining whether the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of an asset is 
material (in which case revaluation is warranted). 

The fair values reported by the Trust are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
available and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (refer to Note (I)) 

Where indices are used in the revaluation process, the Trust ensures that the application of such indices would 
result in a valid estimation of the asset's fair value at reporting date. State Valuation Services (SVS) supplied 
the indices and provided assurance of their robustness, validity and appropriateness for application to the 
relevant assets. Indices used are also tested for reasonableness by applying the indices to a sample of assets and 
comparing results to similar assets that have been valued by an independent professional valuer or internal 
expert, and analysing the trend of changes in values over time. At year end, management assesses the relevance 
and suitability of indices provided by SVS based on the Trust's own particular circumstances. 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of 
the appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised 
as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it 
exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of 
the asset and any change in the estimate ofremaining useful life. 

0) Fair Value Measurement 

(i) Recognised fair value measurements 

The Trust measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis. 

Land and Stream Bank Assets 

The Trust does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due 
to their short term nature. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability. 
Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability. 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable 
data, where it is available and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. In the case of the Trust assets, Land 
and Stream Bank Assets, they are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for similar or identical 
assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

(ii) Valuation technique used to value Trust assets comprise: 

Land and Streambank Assets 

All Trust Land and Stteambank Assets are valued using written down current replacement cost. Tbis valuation 
comprises the asset's current replacement cost less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost 
to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. The Trust first determines the 
gross cost ofreplacing the asset and then adjusted to take account the expired service potential of the asset. 

The present cost or replacement cost basis of valuation is considered to be the more relevant for most of the 
Trusts' conslructed assets. This is because maintenance done by the Trust tends to restore the value of assets to 
their present cost. 

(m) Intangibles 

The Trust currently holds no intangible assets. 

(n) Depreciation 

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
considerations such as manufacturers' warranties, asset turnover practices and the Trust's slrategic asset plan. 
Re-assessments of useful lives are undertaken annually by the Trust. Any consequential adjustments to 
remaining useful life estimates are implemented prospectively. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and 
the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Trust. 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the 
asset to which they relate. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation rates are used (The rate is based on a straight line 

value based on age): 

Adopted Economic Life of Structures/works 
Structure Tyve Assumed Economic Life (years) 

Levee bank 75 
Rockwork - bank protection 50 
Groynes 10 
Stream Traininl! (realiimment) 10 
Tree Planting 10 
Stream Clearinl! 4 

(o) Impairment of Non-Current Assets 

The Trust reviews at each reporting date the carrying amounts of its non-current assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. Such indicators may be either specific to the Trust or 
to the particular asset e.g. Technology changes, or political and economic developments. If an indicator of 

possible impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined and then compared to its carrying 
value. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an 

impairment loss. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the asset's 'fair value less costs to sell' and its 'value in use'. 
Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not prima.rily dependent upon the asset's ability to generate 
net cash inflows or if the asset would be replaced if the Trust was deprived of it, value in use is determined as 

the depreciated replacement cost. 

An impairment Joss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment Joss is offset 
against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. Refer also Note 1 (k). 

(p) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 

generally settled on 30 day terms. 

( q) Financial Instruments 

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position when the Trust becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

Classification 
Financfal instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

• Cash and Cash equivalents - held at fair value through profit and loss 
• Receivables - held at amortised cost 
• Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair value. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented on a net basis in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

The Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart 
from cash and cash equivalents, the department holds no financial assets classified at fair value through profit 
and Joss. 

(r) Employee Benefits 

Key Management Personnel and Remuneration 
Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section 5 of the 
Financial Reporting Requ irements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury and 

Trade. Refer to Note 15 for the disclosures on key management personnel and remuneration. 

Remuneration of Board Members 
Board Members received remuneration for attending meetings during the year in accordance with Cabinet 

approved procedures for the remuneration of part time chairs and members of government boards, committees 
and statutory authorities. 

(s) Provisions 

The Trust currently has no provision liabilities. 

(t) Insurance 

The Trust has current insurance cover for professional indemnity, public liability and fidelity guarantee, trust 
members and officer's liability, employment practices liability with LGM Queensland. The Trust pays insurance 
premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. 

(u) Taxation 

The Trust is exempted from income tax und·er the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempted from other 
forms of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are recognised (refer to Notes 11 and 13). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of OST 

incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the 
Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

(v) Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical 
accounting estimates, assumptions, and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material 

adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, 
judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a:n ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

Estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on the financial statements are outlined in the 
following Notes: 

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment • Notes I (i) - (I) and otes 12 and 14; and Depreciation and 
Amortization · Note I (n) and Note 8. 

(w) Oth.er Presentation Matters 

Comparatives 
There has been no restatement of comparative information. 

(x) New and Revised Accounting Standards 

The Trust did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2016-2017. In the current year, the 
Trust adopted all of the new and revised Standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 

(AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The adoption of the 
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to the Trust's accounting 
policies. 

The only Australian Accounting Standard that became effective for the frrst time in 2016-17 is AASB 124 
Related Party Disclosures. This standard requires note disclosures about Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
renumerated expenses an.d other related party transactions, and does not impact on financial statement line 

items. As Queensland Treasury already required disclosure of KMP renumeration expenses, AASB 124 itself 
had minimal impact on the Trust disclosures compared to 2015-2016 (refer to Note 15). 

AASB 15 is effective from I January 2018 and will replace AASB 118 revenue, AASB 111 Construction 
Contracts and a number of interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the 
recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers. The Trust will review the 

way revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether there will be any material impact. To date, no 
material impacts have been identified. 

AASB 9, which replaces AA.SB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is effective for 
reporting periods beginning on or after I January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of 
AASB 9 is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with 
financial assets. Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 

139 will be replaced with two measurement categories, fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will 
only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met. Based on the current 
financial assets of the Trust, there would be no impact on financial statements, however consideration would 
need to be given to any future application. 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

2 Precept 
Precept 

Total 

3 Grants 
State/Commonwealth Grant Programs 
State Council of River Trusts 

Landholder Contributions 

Total 

4 Other Revenue 

Bank Interest 
Other Revenue 

Total 

5 AdmJnistralion Expenses 

Accounting Fees 

Audit Fees 
Conference Fees 
Consultancy - Engineering 

Dues & Subscriptions 
Fees for Board Memba-s 
Engineering Inspection 
Insurance 

Legal Fees 
Stationary & Office Expenses 

Sundries 

Total 

6 Employee Expenses 

Employee Benefits 
Wages & Salaries 

Superannuation 

Total 

2017 

$ 

100,000 

100,000 

102,600 

72,367 
129,284 

304,251 

1,358 
1,438 

2,796 

880 
7,900 
1,990 

12,184 

1,200 
4,410 

12,819 

944 
2,727 

454 

45,508 

36,409 
3,350 

39,759 

2016 
$ 

100,000 

100,000 

85,788 

96,532 

182,.320 

1,.860 
4,858 

6,718 

3,130 

3,062 
11,734 

J,000 
4,157 

16,535 

3,000 

302 

42,920 

35,158 
3,283 

38,441 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

7 Supplies and Services 
Repairs & Maintenance 

Total 

8 Depreciation 

All Catchments 

Total 

9 RevaJuation Decrement 
All Catchments 

Total 

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cashon Hand 
Deposits at Call 

Total 

11 Receivables 
GST Clearing Account 

Total 

2017 
$ 

21,500 

21,500 

277,217 

277,217 

23,176 
86,396 

109,572 

2016 

s 

265,673 

265,673 

19,903 
131,399 

151,302 

180 

180 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENTTRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

12 Stream Bank Improvement Assets 
Stream Bank Improvement Assets: 
At fair value 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Tomi 

Stream Bank Improvement Assets Reconciliation: 

Carrying amounl· at July 2016 
Acquisitions 
Donations received 
Asset Transfers 
Disposals 
Assets reclassified as held for sale 
Donations made 

Transfers between classes 
Revaluation increments (Note 14) 
Revaluation decrements ( Note 7) 
Impairment losses recognised in operating 
surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses reversed in operating 
surplus/( deficit) 
Impairment losses recognised in equity 
Impairment losses reversed in equity 
Depreciation 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 

2017 
$ 

11 ,722,985 
3,746,370 

7,976,615 

Stream 
Bank 

Assets 
2017 

$ 

7,749,558 
353,554 

150,720 

277,217 

7,976,615 

2016 
$ 

11,509,600 
3,760,042 

7,749,SSS 

Total 

2017 
$ 

7,749,558 
353,554 

150,720 

277,217 

7,976,615 

Independent valuations of stream bank improvement assets were most recently performed as at 30 June 2015 by J.T. 
Smith & Associates Pty Ltd, Consulting Engineers using 'fair value' principles. 

13 Payables 
GST Clearing 

PAYG Withholding 

Total 

11,114 
2,200 

13,314 
1,950 
1,950 
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CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

14 Movement in Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class: 

Balance 1July2015 
Revaluation increments 
Revaluation decrements 

Impairment losses through equity 

Impairment reversals through equity 
Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2016 

Balance 1July2016 
Revaluation increments 

Revaluation decrements 
Impairment losses through equity 

Impairment reversals through equity 

Acquisitions 

Balance 30 June 2017 

Stream 

Bank 
Assets 

144,179 

144,179 

150,720 

294,899 

Total 

144,179 

144,179 

150,720 

294,899 

15 Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those Trust positions that had 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust during 2016-17 
and 2015-16. 

Position Position Responsibility 

Chairperson Responsible for presiding over general meetings; 
ensuring smooth running of the Trust and liaising with, 
advising and attending to the community in relation to 
their concerns associated with river improvement. 

Deputy Chairperson Steps into the role of Chairperson when necessary 

Member Represents the community on the River Trust Committee 

KMP Remuneration Policy 

Remuneration for the Trust's KMP is in accordance with the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. The 
chairperson and other members of the Trust are entitled to fees and allowances payments approved by the 
Minister and in accordance with the current Government policy titled Remuneration of Part-Time Chairs and 
Members of Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities. 
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Remuneration Expenses 
Chairperson 
Members 
Total 

16 Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date 
None Occurring 

38 

2017 
$ 

1,560 
2,850 
4,410 

2016 
$ 

1,365 
2,792 
4,157 
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38 

CERTIFICATE OF CASSOWARY COAST RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

These general purpose finaucial statements have been prepared pursuant to s. 62(1) (a) of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), s 43 of the Financial and Peiformance Management Standard 2009 and 
other prescribed requirements. In accordance with s.62 (I) (b) of the Act we certify that in our opinion: 

(i) The prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping of ac~ounts have been complied with in all 
material respects; and 

(ii) The financial statements have been drawn up so as to present a true and fair view, in accordance with 
prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Trust for the financial year June 2017 and of the 
financial position of the Trust as at the end of that year. 

(iii) These assertions are based 011 an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management processes 
being effective, in all material respects, with respect to financial reporting throughout the rep011ing period. 

Ian Adcock 
Secretary 

.... i.~.l~ . l .%?1.~ ................ .. 
Date 

. .... ..t5} .. ~. 1 .. ~.r:J ....................... . 
Date 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Cassowary Coast River Improvement Trust. 

In my opinion the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2017. and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the statement 
of comprehensive income. statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes to the financial statements including summari~s of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and the management certificate. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensfand Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my 
report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-Genera/ of Queensland 
Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
accordance with prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

The Board is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease operations. 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 
ABN 47 710 024 819 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Note 

Precept 

Grants and Subsidies Received 

Other Contributions 

Interest 

Sundry Income 

Total Income 

Capital Works Expenses 

Maintenance of Works Expenses 

Depreciation 

Audit Fees - 2017 fin yr quote 

Admin Expenses 

Operating profit/ (loss) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to Operating result: 
Increase/ {Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 
Total Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive profit I (loss) 

3 

4 

5 

6 

11 

8 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

163,105 160,063 

147,692 

5,988 7,092 

12,406 11,021 

329,190 178,176 

(55,213) (6,289) 

(638) 

(188,680) {185,897) 

{4,800) {4,800) 

(57,336) (70,284) 

23,162 (89,731) 

539,166 90,270 
539,166 90,270 

562,328 539 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

ABN 47 710 024 819 

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017 

Note 2017 2016 

$ $ 

Assets 
Current Assets 

cash assets 9 778,274 697,545 

Receivables 10 32,686 

Current tax assets 10 3,561 4,328 

Prepaid Expenses 12 5,100 5,083 

Total Current Assets 819,621 706,956 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 11 6,888,866 6,450,140 

Total Non-Current Assets 6,888,866 6,450,140 

Total Assets 7,708,487 7,157,096 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Payables 13 5,280 10,230 

Prepaid Income 14 5,988 

Total Current Uabllltles 5,280 16,218 

Total liabilities 5,280 16,218 

Net Assets 7,703,207 7,140,879 

Equity 

Accumulated Surplus 973,717 950,555 

Asset Revaluation Surplus 15 6,729,490 6,190,324 

Total Equity 7,703,207 7,140,879 
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Balance at 01/07 /2015 

Profit/ (Loss) for year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Whltsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 
ABN 47 710 024 819 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Accumulated 
Surplus 
1,040,286 

(89,731) 

- Increase/ (Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 

Balance at 30/06/2016 950,555 

Profit I (Loss) for year 23,162 

Other Comprehensive Income 
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 

Balance at 30/06/2017 973,717 

Asset 
Revaluation 

Surplus Total 
6,100,054 7,140,340 

(89,731) 

90,270 90,270 

6,190,324 7,140,879 

23,162 

539,166 539,166 

6,729,490 7,703,207 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

ABN 47 710 024 819 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

Inflows: 

Grants and other customers 

GST Collected from customers 

GST Received from ATO 

Interest received 

Other 

Outflows: 

Supplies and services 

GST Paid to suppliers 

GST Paid to ATO 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities 

Inflows: 

Sales of Property, Plant & Equipment 

Outflows: 

Payments for property, plant and equipment 

Net cash provided by (used In) Investing activities 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities 
Inflows: 

Repayments of loans 

Outflows: 

Loan proceeds 

Net cash provided by (used In) fin<lnclng <lctivities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 

Cash at the beginning of the year 

cash at the end of the year 

2017 2016 

$ $ 

282,897 168,455 

11,898 763 

3,398 16,941 

12,406 11,021 

-123,688 -76,913 

-17,943 -4,161 

0 0 
168,968 116,106 

0 0 

-88,240 0 

-88,240 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

80,728 116,106 
697,545 581,439 

778,274 697,545 
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Whltsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

ABN 47 710 024 819 

Notes to and forming part of the Flnam;lal Statements 2016-17 

Objectives and principal activities of the Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

Notel Basis of Financial Statement Preparation 

Note 2 User Charges and Fees 

Note 3 Grants and Subsidies Received 

Note4 Other Cont ributions 

Note S Interest Revenue 

Note 6 Sundry Income 

Note 7 Key Managment Personnel and Remuneration Expenses 

Notes Admin Expenses 

Note 9 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Note 10 Receivables I Current Tax Assets 

Note 11 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Note 12 Other Assets 

Note 13 Payables 

Note 14 Other Liabilities 

Note 15 Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class 

Note 16 Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 

Note 17 Events occurring after Balance Date 

Note 18 Financial Instruments 

Note 19 Other Informat ion 

Note 20 capital Commitments 
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Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 
ABN 47 710 024 819 

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements 2016-17 

Note 1: Basis of Financial Statement Preparation 

(a) General lnfonnation 

These financial statements cover the Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust (the Trust). The Trust is a Statutory Body 
that operates in accordance with powers and responsibilities of the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. 

(b) Compliance with Prescribed Requirements 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009 . 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accrual basis (with 
the exception of the statement of cash flows which is prepared on a cash basis) in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Australian Interpretations. 

The Trust is a not-for-profit entity and the financial statements comply with the requirements of Australian Accounting 
Standards - RDR and Interpretations applicable to not-for-profit entities. 

(c) The Reporting Entity 

The Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements include the value of all revenue, expenses, assets, 
liabilities and equity for the Trust as an individual entity. 

(d) Underlying Measurement Basis 

The historical cost convention is used unless otherwise stated. 

(e) Other Presentation Matters 

Currency and Rounding 

Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars. No rounding of amounts has occurred. 

Comparatives 

Comparative information reflects the submitted for audit 2015-16 financial statements. 

Current I Non-Current Classification 
Assets and liabilities are classified as either 'current' or non-current' in the Statement of Financial Position and associated 
notes. Assets are classified as 'currenf where their carrying amount is expected to be realised within 12 months after the 
reporting date. Liabilities are classified as 'currenf when they are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting 
date, or the Trust does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement to beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 
Ali other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

(f) New and Revised Accounting Standards (including Early Adoption 

The Trust did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2016-17. 
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The only Australian Accounting Standard that became effective for the first time in 2016-17 is AASB 124 Related Party 
Disclosures . This standard requires note disclosures about Key Management Personnel (KMP) remunerated expenses 
and other related party transactions, and does not impact on financial statement line items. As Queensland Treasury 
already required disclosure of KMP remunerations expenses, AASB 124 itself had minimal impact on the AuthorityfTrust 
KMP disclosures compared to 2015-16 (refer to note 22). Material related party transactions for 2016-17 are disclosed in 
Note 23. No comparative information about related party transactions is required in respect of 2015-16. 

(g) Authorisation of Financial Statements for Issue 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chairperson and Secretary at the date of signing the Management 
Certificate. 

Note 2: User Charges and Fees 

Accounting Policy 

Revenue from sale of goods or rendering of a service is recognised when the revenue is eamed and can be measured 
reliably with a sufficient degree of certainty. Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been 
established. 

There was no revenue of this nature received or invoiced by the Trust during the 2016-17 financial year. 

Note 3: Grants and Subsidies Received 

SCRT Grants 
NDRAA Funding Received 

la/ Accounting Policv 

29,641 .60 
118,049.94 

147,691.54 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Grants, contributions, donations and gifts that are non-reciprocal in nature (i.e. do not require any goods or services to be 
provided in retum) are recognised as revenue in the year in which the Trust obtains control over them (control is generally 
obtained at the time of receipt). Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively 

The Trust also receives contributions of assets from the govemment and other parties. These assets are recognised at 
fair value on the date of acquisition in the Statement of Financial Position, with a corresponding amount of revenue 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Note 4: Other Contributions 

Lease Payments (Grazing Permit) 5,987.53 7,092.11 

5,987.53 7,092.11 
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Note 5: Interest Revenue 

Cheque Account (Wide Bay I Auswide - closed 16/10/15) 

Cheque Account (Commonwealth Bank) 

Term Deposit (Wide Bay I Auswide - closed 28/9/15) 

Term Deposit (Commonwealth Bank 50069309 - closed 5/5/17) 

Term Deposit (Commonwealth Bank 50069317) 
Term Deposit (Commonwealth Bank - closed 31/3/16) 

Note 6: Sundry Income 
Nil 

0.00 

34.09 

0.00 

7,330.69 

5,041 .53 
0.00 

12,406.31 

0.00 

0.00 

116.29 

37.99 

2,988.67 

2,839.93 

3,784.23 
1,253.55 

11,020.66 

0.00 

0.00 

Note 7: Key Management Personnel and Remuneration Expenses 

Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury. 

(i) Remuneration of Board Members 

Board members are paid fees and allowances in accordance with s.208 of the River Improvement Trust Act 1940. 

Meeting of 4 hours or less duration 

Meeting of more than 4 hours duration 

(ii) Key Management Personnel 

Chairperson - Patricia Botto 

Acting Chairperson - John Collins 

Secretary - Joanne Linneweber 

(iii) Remuneration Expenses 

Chairperson 

$195 

$390 

Members 

$150 

$300 

Appointed 1 May 1997, passed on 13 October 2016. 

Commenced following Mrs Botto's passing in 
October 2016. 

Appointed 1 December 2008. 

Payments received by Committee Members are in accordance with engagement letters at commencement. An annual 
budget is set increasing the prior year remuneration by CPI. This budgeted figure is approved, or amended, at the annual 
general meeting prior to increased remuneration being paid. 

For the 2017 year the following amounts were paid: 

Chairperson Fees and Expenses 

Overseer Allowance 

Secretary Allowance and Expenses 

$2,329.95 

$4,585.50 

$23,123.00 
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{iv) Performance Payments 

No board members or key management personnel are entitled to receive performance I bonus payments. 

Note 8: Admin Expenses 

Accounting Fees 

Advertising 

Audit Fees (prior year) 

Bank Charges 

Conference/Travel Expenses 

Contribution - State Council 

Dues & Subscriptions 

External Workshops 

Insurance 

Plant & Equipment (under $5,000) 

Postage & Office Supplies 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Staffing I Personnel Costs 

- Chairperson Fees and Expenses 

- Consultant Engineer Fees 

- Member Fees 

-Mileage 

- Overseer Allowance 

- Secretary Allowance 

- Special Assignment 
Storage Fees 

Note 9: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cheque Account (Commonwealth Bank) 

Term Deposit {Commonwealth Bank - 309) 

Term Deposit (Commonwealth Bank - 317) 

(al Accounting Policy 

1,877.27 

388.86 

300.00 

-0.03 

1,604.45 

1,320.00 

5,096.74 

692.26 

2,329.95 

11 ,031 .25 

3,600.00 

4,585.50 

23,123.00 

1,386.63 

57,335.88 

524,447.85 
0.00 

253,825.70 

778,273.55 

3,397.72 

14.90 

4,102.31 

1,100.00 

6,597.38 

45.45 

664.41 

120.00 

7,950.00 

12,300.00 

2,700.00 

231.82 

9,300.00 

20,000.00 

1,759.96 

70,283.95 

145,921.24 
302,839.93 

248,784.23 

697,545.40 

Cash includes all cash and cheques receipted at 30 June as well as deposits held at call with financial institutions. 
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Note 10: Receivables I Current Tax Assets 

Trade Debtors 
Less: Allowance for impairment loss 

GST Collected 
GST Paid 

Advances 
Other 

Total 

(a / Accounting Policy 

32,685.76 0.00 

32,685.76 0.00 

-14,861.89 -762.59 
18,422.65 5,090.56 

3,560.76 4,327.97 

36,246.52 4,327.97 

Trade debtors are recognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase I 
contract price. Settlement terms are within 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known bad debts 
were written-off as at 30 June. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events that have occurred. 

As most revenue is received from the Whitsunday Regional Council or government bodies the risk of bad debt is minimal 
so impairment is not included. 

lb/ Additional Disclosure 

As at 30 June 2017 there was $80.00 outstanding from the Don River Improvement Trust (issued 6 June 2017) and 
$32,605.76 from the State Council of River Trusts (issued 19 May 2017). 

(c} Movements in the allowance for impairment loss for trade debtors 
Balance as at 1 July 

Amounts written off during the year 
Increase I decrease in allowance 

Balance as at 30 June 0.00 

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense 

Land: At fair value 

Gross 192,500.00 
Less: Accumulated impairment losses 

192,500.00 

Land Improvements: 

Gross 13, 148,045.00 
Less: Accumulated depreciation -6,539,919.00 
Less: Accumulated impairment losses 

6,608, 126.00 

0.00 

192,500.00 

192,500.00 

12,448, 795. 00 

-6,191,155.00 

6,257,640.00 
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Work in Progress 

Total Land Improvements 

Total Property Plant & Equipment 

Depreciation Expense 

Land Improvements 

Total Depreciation 

{al Accounting Policv 

Acquisition of Assets 

88,240.00 0.00 

6,696,366.00 6,257,640.00 

$ 6,888,866.00 $ 6,450,140.00 

188,680.00 185,897.00 

188,680.oo 185,897.00 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as the value 
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in getting the assets ready 
for use, including architects' fees and engineering design fees. However, any training costs are expenses as incurred. 

Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland public sector entity (usually via an involuntary 
transfer), the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the transferor immediately prior 
to the transfer together with any accumulated depreciation. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from another Queensland 
government agency, are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant 
and Equipment. 

Recognition Thresholds for Property, Plant and Equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds are 
recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Land 

Infrastructure 

Plant & Equipment 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

$1 

$10,000 

$5,000 

Expenditure is only capitalised if it increases the service potential or useful life of the existing asset. Maintenance 
expenditure that merely restores original service potential (arising from ordinary wear and tear etc.) is expensed. 

Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets 

Land and land improvements are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public 
Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of valuation, less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses where applicable (refer also to an explanation 
later in this note regarding the impact of different methods of accounting for accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses in conjunction with revaluations). 
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In respect of the abovementioned asset classes, the cost of items acquired during the financial year has been judged by 
management to materially represent their fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

Plant and equipment is measured at cost in accordance with the Non-Current Asset Policies. The carrying amounts for 
plant and equipment at cost should not materially differ from their fair value. 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 

Property, plant and equipment classes measured at fair value (refer above) are revalued on an annual basis either by 
appraisals undertaken by an independent professional value or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and relevant 
indices. For financial reporting purposes, the revaluation process is managed by the Trust board, who determine the 
specific revaluation practices and procedures. The board undertakes annual reviews of the revaluation practices (after 
each year's revaluation exercise), and discusses the outcomes of, and recommendations arising from, each annual review 
at their annual general meeting. 

Revaluations using independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once every five 
years. However, if a particular asset class experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value, that class is subject 
to specffic appraisal in the reporting period, where practicable, regardless of the timing of the last specific appraisal. 

Materiality concepts are considered in determining whether the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value 
of an asset is material {in which case revaluation is warranted). 

The fair values reported by the Trust are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of available 
and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. 

Where assets have not been specifically appraised in the reporting period, their previous valuations are materially kept up
to-date via the application of relevant indices. The Trust ensure that the application of such indices results in a valid 
estimation of the assets' fair values at reporting date. The State Valuation Service (SVS) supplies the indices used for the 
various types of assets. Such indices are either publicly available, or are derived from market information available to the 
SVS. SVS provides assurance of their robustness, validity and appropriateness for application to the relevant assets. 
Indices used are also tests for reasonableness by applying the indices to a sample of assets, comparing the results to 
similar assets that have been valued by an independent professional valuer or internal expert, and analysing the trend of 
changes in values over time. Through this process, which is undertaken annually, management assesses and confirms 
the relevance and suitability of indices provided by SVS based on the Trust's own particular circumstances. 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the 
appropriate class, expect to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an 
expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds the 
balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

On revaluation: 

•for assets revalued using a cost valuation approach (e.g. Depreciated replacement cost) - accumulated depreciation is 
adjusted to equal the difference t>E!tween the gross amount and carrying amount, after taking into account accumulated 
impairment losses. This is generally referred to as the 'gross method'; and 

•for assets revalued using a market or income-based valuation approach - accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses are eliminated against the gross amount of the asset prior to restating for the revaluation. This is 
generally referred to as the 'net method'. 
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Depreciation 

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. 

Infrastructure and plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the revalued amount or 
net cost of each asset (respectively), less its estimated residual value, progressively over its remaining estimated useful 
life to the Trust 

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as considerations 
such as manufacturers' warranties, asset turnover practices and the Trust's strategic asset plan. Reassessments of useful 
lives are undertaken annually by the Trust. Any consequential adjustments to remaining useful life estimates are 
implemented prospectively. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are 
assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new 
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Trust. 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the asset 
to which they relate. 

Impairment 

All non-current physical [and intangible assets where applicable) are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual 
basis. If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the Trust determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by 
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. 

The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and depreciated 
replacement cost. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset 
revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of 
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss 
is treated as a revaluation increase. 

fbl Additional Disclosure - Depreciation 

For each class of depreciable asset the following useful lives are used: 

Class 
Infrastructure 

Plant & Equipment 

Years 

50-90 
4-10 
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fc l Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i_e_ an exit price) regardless of whether that 
price is directly derived from observable inputs or estimated using another valuation technique. 

Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the assets / liabilities being valued. 
Observable inputs used by the Trust include, but are not limited to, published sales data for land and general office 
buildings. 

Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgements that are not available publicly, but are relevant to the 
characteristics of the assets/ liabilities being valued. Significant unobservable inputs used by the Trust include subjective 
adjustments made to observable data to take account of the characteristics of the Trust's assets/ liabilities, internal record 
of recent construction costs (and I or estimates of such costs) for assets' characteristics I functionality, and assessments 
of physical condition and remaining useful life. Unobservable inputs are used to the extent that sufficient relevant and 
reliable observable inputs are not available for similar assets / liabilities. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participanrs ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use. 

Independent valuations of land improvements were most recenUy performed as at 30 June 2016 by Cardno (Old) Pty Ltd. 
The Mackay office is part of an international organisation of around 6,500 staff working in over 200 offices across more 
than 100 countries worldwide. The Mackay, Queensland, office and Senior Engineer Jason O'Neill have many years of 
engineering experience. The organisation has dealt with similar assets to those of the Whitsunday Rivers Improvement 
Trust and have thorough knowledge of the Mackay/Whitsunday region. 

The board does not consider there to be any material change in fair value since that date. The asset register has, 
however, been updated to incorporate the June 2017 quarter ABS index. 

fd) Property. Plant and Equipment Reconciliation 

Carrying amount at 1 July 2016 

Acquisitions 

Donations Received 

Disposals 

Assets reclassified as held for sale 

Donations made 

Transfers between classes 
Revaluation increments (Note 15) 

Revaluation decrements 

Impairment losses reversed in operating surplus (deficit) 
Depreciation 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 

Note 12: Other Assets 

Current 
Prepayments (Insurance) 

Total 

Land 

192,500.00 

0.00 

192,500.00 

5,100.37 

5,100.37 

Improvements 

6,257,640.00 

88,240.00 

539,166.00 

-188,680.00 

6,696,366.00 

Total 

6,450, 140.00 

88,240.00 

539,166.00 

-188,680.00 

6,888,866.00 

5,082.77 

5,082.77 
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Note 13: Payables 

Current 

Trade Creditors 

Total 

Accounting Policv 

5,280.00 10,230.00 

5,280.00 10,230.00 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase I 
contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 
30 day terms. 

Note 14: Other Liabilities 

Current 
Prepayments {Income - Lease Fee) 0.00 5,987.53 

Total 0.00 5,987.53 

Additional Disclosure 
The lease for the land was due for renewal in the 2016-17 year but was only signed off on in July 2017 and an invoice 
issued then. No invoice was issued during the 2016-17 year, so resultantly no prepayment liability. 

Note 15: Asset Revaluation Surplus by Class 
Land 

Trust Land Improvements Total 

Balance as at 1 July 2016 0.00 6, 190,324.35 6, 190,324.35 

Revaluation Increments 539,166.00 539, 166.00 

Revaluation decrements 0.00 

Impairment losses through equity 0.00 
Impairment reversals through equity 0.00 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 11.1111 6,729,:ffll.35 g,72§,i§D.3~ 

Balance as at 1 July 2015 6, 100,054.35 6, 100,054.35 

Revaluation Increments 90,270.00 90,270.00 

Revaluation decrements 0.00 

Impairment losses through equity 0.00 
Impairment reversals through equity 0.00 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 II.do 6, 1 §o,324.35 6, 190,324.35 

Note 16: Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 

There were no assets or liabilities received or donated I transferred by the Trust during the 2016-17 financial year. 
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Note 17: Events Occurring after Balance Date 

There are no events that have occurred since balance date that require a note to the financial statements. 

Note 18: Financial Instruments 

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Trust becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Classification 

Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

- Receivables - held at amortised cost 

- Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair value. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented on a net basis in the Statement of Financial 
Position. 

The Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. The Trust also 
holds no financial assets classified as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Note 19: Other Information 

The Trust is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempted from other forms of 
Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). GST credits 
receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are recognised (refer to Note 10). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is 
not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position 
are shown inclusive of GST. 

Insurance 

The Trust insures for public liability risks and community organisations. Such insurance cover is currently held with Aon 
Risk Services Australia Limited. 

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The most significant estimates and assumptions made in the preparation of the financial statements related to the fair 
value and depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment. Details are set out in Note 11. The valuation of property, plant 
and equipment necessarily involves estimation uncertainty with the potential to materially impact on the carrying amount of 
such assets in the next reporting period. 
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Note 20: Capital Commibnents 

Capital expenditures committed at the end of the period but not recognised in the accounts are as follows: 

Not later than one year 

2017 
$ 

346,984.00 

2016 
$ 

0.00 
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Whltsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

ABN 47 710 024 819 

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements 2016-17 

MANGEMENT CERTIFICATE OF 
WHITSUNDAY RIVERS IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to s.62(1)(a) of the Financial 

Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), s.43 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and 

other prescribed requirements. In accordance with s.62(1)(b) of the Act we certify t hat in our opinion: 

a) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with 

in all material respects; and 

b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with 

prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 and of the financial position of the Trust as at the end of 

that year; and 

c) these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management 

processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to financial reporting throughout 
the reporting period. 

JOANNE LINNEWEBER 

Secretary 
JOHN COLLINS 

Acting Chairperson 

~If~ 
Dated: 17/ 8"/17 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Whitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report ofWhitsunday Rivers Improvement Trust. 

In my opinion.the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management certificate. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have 
also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the A.uditor
General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the 
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards -
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the Board determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease operations. 



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  176 

 

  



 

Queensland’s river improvement trusts: Summary of annual reports and financial statements 2017-18, 
Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy  177 

STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

Income From Continuing Operations 

Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 

Total Income From Continuing Operations 

Expenses From Continuing Operations 

River Trust Protection Works 

Member's Fees 

Supplies and Services 

Total Expenses From Continuing Operations 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Notes 

2 

3 
4 

5 

2017 
$ 

80,228 
80,228 

99,037 

1,852 
8,641 

109,530 

29,302 

- 29,302 

2016 
$ 

15,000 
15,000 

1,080 
4,026 

5,106 

9,894 

9,894 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASAT30JUNE 2017 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Payables 

Total Current Liabilit ies 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Equity 

Accumulated Surplus 

Total Equity 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Notes 2017 
$ 

6 43,638 
7 2,745 

46,383 

8 

46,383 

9 15,016 

15,016 

15,016 

31,367 

31,367 
31,367 

2016 

$ 

63,021 

63,021 

63,021 

2,352 

2,352 

2,352 

60,669 

60,669 
60,669 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

Balance as at 1 July 2015 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at 1 July 2015 

Balance as at 1 July 2016 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at 1 July 2017 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Accumulated 

Surplus 

$ 

50,775 
9,894 

60,669 

60,669 

29,302 

31,367 

Asset 

Revaluation 

Surplus 

$ 
Total 

$ 

50,775 

9,894 

60,669 

60,669 
29,302 

31,367 
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STAN1THORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

Notes 2017 2016 

$ $ 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Inflows 
Precepts, Grants and Other Contributions 80,228 15,000 

Interest Received 

Other Revenue 

GST Input Tax Credits From ATO 

GST Collected From Customers 8,023 1,500 

Outflows 

River Trust Protection Works - 89,624 
Member's Fees 1,852 - 1,080 
Supplies and Services 6,541 - 4,026 

GST Remitted to ATO 

GST Paid To Suppliers 9,617 - 348 

Net cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 19,383 11,046 

cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Inflows 

Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Outflows 

Payments for Property, Plant & Equipment 

Net cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 

cash Flows From Financing Activities 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities 

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,383 11,046 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Financial Year 63,021 51,975 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 8 43,638 63,021 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

1.A Basis of Preparation 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, 

Australian Accounting interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except 

for the revaluation of certain non-current assets. 

1.B Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability 

Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the 

River Trust has applied those requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the River 

Trust is a not-for-profit public sector entity. 

1.C Date of Authorisation 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the 

Auditor-General for final signature. This is the date the management certificate is signed. 

1.D Currency 

The River Trust uses the Australian Dollar as its functional and presentation currency. 

1.E The Reporting Entity 

The River Trust does not control other entities. The financial statements include the value of 

all revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity for the River Trust as an individual entity. 

1.F Revenue 

Precepts, grants and other contribut ions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as 

revenue in the year in which the Trust obtains control over them. Where grants are received 

that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively recognised as it is earned, according to 

the funding agreements. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

1.G Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand, cash and cheques receipted at 30 June, 

deposits held at call with financial institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid investments 

with original maturities ofthree months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.H Acquisition of Assets 

The River Trust currently holds no assets. 

1.1 Property Plant and Equipment 

The River Trust currently holds no property plant and equipment. 

1.J Intangibles 

The River Trust currently holds no intangible assets. 

1.K Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are 

measured at the agreed purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other 

discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 days terms. 

1.L Financial Inst ruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 

when the River Trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents - held at fair value through profit and loss 

2. Receivables - held at amortised cost 

3. Payables - held at amortised cost 

The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair values. 

No financial assets and financial liabilit ies have been offset and presented on a net basis in the 

Statement of Financial Position. 

The River Trust does not enter into, or trade with, such instruments for speculative purposes, 

nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the River Trust holds no financial 

assets classified at fair value t hrough profit and loss. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

1.M Provisions 

The River Trust currently has no provision liabilities. 

l.N Insurance 

The River Trust will pay insurance premiums to LGM Queensland in respect of its obligations 

for public liability and professional indemnity. 

1.0 Taxation 

The River Trust is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and 

is exempted from other forms of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Goods and 

Services Tax (GST). GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO are recognised. 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 

circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset, or as part 

of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financia l Posit ion are 

shown inclusive of GST. 

l.P Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financia l statements necessarily requires the determination and use of 

certain critical accounting estimates, assumptions and management judgements that have the 

potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 

the estimate is revised, and in future periods as relevant. 

1.Q Comparatives 

There has been no restatement of comparative information. 

l.R New and Revised Accounting Standards 

First Time Mandatory Application of Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

The only Austra lian Accounting Standard that became effective for the first t ime in 2016-17 is 

AASB 124 Related Party Oisclosures. This standard require note disclosures about key 

management personnel (KMP) remuneration expenses and other related party t ransact ions, 

and does not impact on financial statement line items. As Queensland Treasury already 

required disclosure of KMP remuneration expenses, AASB 124 itself had minimal impact on 

the Trust's KMP disclosures compared to 2015-16 (refer to Note 4). 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

Material related party transactions for 2016-17 are disclosed in Note 4. No comparative 

information about related party transactions is required in respect of 2015-16. 

1.S Contributions 

The River Trust acknowledges the contribution by Southern Downs Regional Council in the 

supply of some engineering assistance. The value of the contribution received for this 

serviceshas not been included in the statements and the impact of this omission is not 

considered to be material ;md would not misrepresent the truthfulness of the statement. 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

2. Precepts, Grants and Other Cont1ributions 

Southern Downs Regional Council Precept 

State Council of River Trusts Queensland Grant 

DILGP/NDRRA Subsidy Flood Mitigation Works 

TOTAL 

3. River Trust Protection Works 

TOTAL 

4. Member's Fees 

Details of Key Management Personnel: 

2017 2016 

$ $ 

3S,OOO 15,000 

45,228 
80,228 15,000 

99,037 
99,037 

The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those Trust positions 

that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 

Trust during 2016-17 and 2015-16. 

Position Position Responsibility 

Chairperson Responsible for presiding over general 

meetings; ensuring smooth running of 

the Trust and liaising with, advising and 

attending to the community in relation 

to their concerns associated with river 
improvement. 

Deputy Chairperson Steps into the role of Chairperson when 

necessary. 

Member Represents the community on the River 

Trust Committee. 

Remuneration is made in accordance with the current Government policy titled Remuneration 

of Part-Time Chairs and Members of Government Boards, Committees and Statutory Authorities. 

Mr Greg Thouard (Chairperson) 

Mr Stephen Bell (Member) 

TOTAL 

5. Supplies and Services 

Audit Fees 

Conferences, Seminars and Training 

Other Costs - Insurance 

Membership - State Council of River Trusts Queensland 

Secretariat Services 

TOTAL 

1,252 

600 
1,852 

4,200 

1,216 

1,200 

2,025 
8,641 

780 

300 
1,080 

2,000 

287 

1,000 

739 
4,026 
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STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE flNANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

NAB Cheque Account 
TOTAL 

7. Receivables 

A TO GST Refund 

TOTAL 

8. Property, Plant and Equipment 

43,638 
43,638 

2,745 

2,745 

63,021 
63,021 

The committee has reviewed previous works performed by the River Trust. None of these works 

meet the definition of what is an asset. Therefore, no assets are recorded in the statements. 

9. Payables 

Accounts Payable 

Accrued Audit Fee 

ATO GST Payment 

TOTAL 

10,354 

2,310 
2,352 

15,016 
2,352 
2,352 
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Stanthorpe Shire 
River Improvement Trust 

PO Box 14 
Warwick QLD 4370 

Ph: 0400 750 351 
Email: stanthorpeRIT@gmail.com 

STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016-17 

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE OF STANTHORPE SHIRE RIVER IMPROVEMENT TRUST FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62 (1) (a) of 
the Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), section 43 of the Financial Performance and 
Management Standard 2009, and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with section 62 
(1) (b) of the Act, we certify that in our opinion: 

(i) the prescribed requirements in respect of the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial statements have been drawn up so as to present a true and fair view, 
in accordance with prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the 
Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 
2017, and of the financial position of the River Trust as at the end of that year; 
and 

{i ii) these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk 
management processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to 
financial reporting throughout the reporting period. 

13 October 2017 Mr Greg Thouard 
Chairman 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Stanthorpe Shire River Improvement 
Trust. 

In my opinion the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management 
certificate. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audlit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Acc-0untants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I 
have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the 
Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provEde a 
basiis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, 
the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the Board 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of aq;ounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease operations. 
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